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1. ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT

Bethany Village is delighted that you are interested in our community. We hope you find this
Disclosure Statement interesting and useful and that it helps you have a better understanding
of our community. While many of the disclosures provided in this document are required by
state regulations, you will also find additional information that we think will be helpful. We
believe it is important for you to know and understand the mission, history, ownership,
governance, and finances of a continuing care retirement community (CCRC) before making a
decision that affects your future quality of life. Having this information will help you select a
community that is a good fit with your priorities and where you will be most comfortable.

Bethany Village shall amend this disclosure statement at any time, should, in the opinion of
Bethany Village or the Pennsylvania Department of Aging, an amendment be necessary to
prevent the document from containing any material misstatement of fact.

Community Address
‘ Bethany Village
325 Wesley Dr., Mechanicsburg, PA, 17055
‘ Sales Office: 717-766-0279

Name & Address of Owner/Provider Name & Address of Parent
‘ Asbury Atlantic, Inc. Asbury Communities, Inc.
| 5285 Westview Drive #200 5285 Westview Drive #200
Frederick, MD 21703 Frederick, MD 21703
‘ www.BethanyVillage.org www.Asbury.org

Statement of Tax-Exempt Status
‘ Asbury Atlantic, Inc. and Asbury Communities, Inc. are 501(c) 3 not-for-profit charitable
corporations. Please see Exhibit E for the Asbury Atlantic, Inc. IRS Determination Letter.
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2. ABOUT BETHANY VILLAGE

History

Bethany Village was founded in 1964 as a charitable not-for-profit corporation to provide
residential and health services for seniors. Since the day it opened in 1964, Bethany Village
has been committed to meeting the needs of

seniors and providing enhanced, high-quality |—
services. Statement regarding religious and other
| affiliations

Plans for expansion began almost immediately,
with the first 15 cottages approved for
construction in  1967. Another 80 were|
completed during 1978, and Bethany Court |
opened in July 1992. In 1998, the community laid
the groundwork for vyears of expansion,

Bethany Village has a historical
relationship with the United Methodist
Church; however, there are no financial
or contractual obligations between
Bethany Village/Asbury Atlantic, Inc. and
the United Methodist Church. Our

purchasing an additional 100 acres of land
(formerly the Sheely Farm) across the road from
the existing campus to create the West Campus.

Bethany Village affiliated with  Asbury
Communities, Inc. in January 2000 and began
taking reservations for West Apartments later

charitable mission continues to flow
from the teachings of John Wesley,
founder of the Methodist Church, who
believed that a faith-based life is blessed
by grace and carried outward into the
world in service for others. Today, we
translate those values by working
toward excellence and doing all the

that year. The community grew steadily through ‘
the decade, opening the West Apartments,
MapleWood Assisted Living and The Oaks Skilled
Nursing during 2004. The latest round of ‘
expansion was concluded in 2008, with the
opening of the West Cottages and Estate Homes.

good we can for seniors.

Bethany Village is an affiliate of Asbury
Communities, Inc., the not-for-profit
parent of a system of senior living and
| health service providers.

About the Community

Bethany Village’s 184-acre suburban campus is set on beautifully landscaped greens with
hundreds of mature trees. Campus amenities include multiple dining venues, an indoor pool
and full-scale fitness center, outpatient therapy, state of the art Brain Health Center which
includes rock wall, boxing studio, and technology lab, also resident garden plots, walking
trails, disc golf and mini-golf courses and an outdoor garden train.

Each year, many community residents participate in the Bethany Games, a version of the
National Senior Games, competing in areas such as swimming, water volleyball, badminton,
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disc golf, and cycling. In 2011, Bethany residents also founded the community’s first Mini-
Golf Championship, which runs from May to June. Seasonal traditions include snow tubing
at a nearby ski resort and a summer water-tubing trip.

Residents live in the community’s 249 apartment homes or 142 single-level homes or utilize
the community’s memory support and assisted living or skilled nursing suites.

Bethany Village is an equal housing opportunity provider and is welcome to prospective
residents, aged 55 years and older. Minimum age waivers may be granted in special
circumstances. As of December 31, 2024, 479 residents reside in cottages or apartments, 99
in assisted living, and 66 in skilled nursing. The total resident population is 644.

For more information, visit www.BethanyVillage.org.
Expansions and Renovations

Bethany Village has been engaged in a 17-million-dollar capital campaign over the last
several years to enhance and update the Bethany Village East community. The new
Community Room, The Richard D. Rife Center, was completed in August 2016. The former
Community Center is now the Café/Bistro, which was completed in April 2021. The focus of
the campaign has now shifted to Phase I, the final phase which will include a new Gift
Shop, Salon/Spa and Library to be completed in 2026. In addition, a state-of-the-art Brain
Health Center, and the renovation of Springfield’s restaurant on West was completed in
2024. Bethany also acquired 28+ acres of adjoining property for future development.

Resident Associations

Bethany Village has very active and vibrant resident association groups that promote
resident interests, facilitate communication, interact with management, and organize
events and activities. The Bethany Village Residents’ Council is comprised of elected
representatives who meet monthly with administration (but not in July and August) to focus
on various aspects of campus life and to receive and integrate resident and staff suggestions
for improving the quality of life at Bethany Village. Minutes from these meetings are
distributed to all residents.
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3. ABOUT THE OWNER & PARENT CORPORATION

Bethany Village is owned and operated by Asbury Atlantic, Inc., a not-for-profit charitable
corporation, which is the legal entity responsible for providing services to the residents of
Bethany Village. Asbury Atlantic also owns and operates one other continuing care retirement
community (CCRC} in Pennsylvania: Springhill, Erie, PA. and two other CCRCs in Maryland:
Asbury Methodist Village, Gaithersburg, MD, and Asbury Solomons, Solomons, MD. Asbury
Atlantic also owns and operates Asbury Chandler Estate, Pen Argyl, PA, which offers rentals for
seniors and personal care.

Asbury Communities, Inc., a not-for-profit corporation, is the sole member (parent) of Asbury
Atlantic; however, Asbury Communities is not responsible for the financial or contractual
obligations of Asbury Atlantic. Asbury Communities is also the sole member of the following
entities:

1170 West Main Street LLC disregarded entity for tax purposes owned by Asbury Communities.
Asbury Living, Inc. owns and operates Asbury Grace Park (Stroudsburg, PA) and Asbury lvy Gables
(Wilmington, DE).
Asbury Atlantic, Inc. owns and operates Asbury Methodist Village (Gaithersburg, MD), Asbury Solomons
(Solomons, MD), Bethany Village (Mechanicsburg, PA), Asbury Chandler Estate, and Springhill (Erie, PA).
IVA, Inc. holds the liquor licenses.
Albright Care Services, Inc. owns and operates Normandie Ridge (York, PA), Riverwoods (Lewisburg, PA),
Pharmacies located at Riverwoods and Asbury Methodist Village, as well as LIFE centers located in
Lancaster, Lebanon, Lycoming/Clinton, Franklin and Cumberland, PA.
Warrior Run Manor, Inc. owns and operates a section 202 HUD senior housing apartment
building (Watsontown, PA). Albright Care Services controls 5 of 9 Board seats, 4 of 9 Board seats
are controlled by Watsontown Area Senior Citizens Housing Corporation.
Asbury, Inc.
Forest Ridge Manor, Inc. owns and operates a section 202 HUD senior housing apartment
building (Kingsport, TN). Asbury, Inc. is the Sponsor and controlling entity of Forest Ridge Manor,
Inc.
Asbury Foundation, Inc. operates all of the charitable fundraising for Asbury Communities’ not-for-
profit affiliates.
Affiliated Associates, Inc. is a payroll holding company which leases employees to the not-for-profit
affiliates.
Bethany Development Corp owns and operates a section 202 HUD senior housing apartment building
(Mechanicsburg, PA).
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The Asbury Group, Inc. Asbury Communities is the 100% stockholder.
ThriveWell Tech LLC provides IT products and services to Asbury Communities, Inc., and other
third-party entities. The Asbury Group, Inc. is the sole Member.
MFA Holdings LLC owns and operates Asbury Place Maryville, Asbury Place Kingsport/Baysmont,
and Asbury Place Kingsport/Steadman Hill. The Asbury Group, Inc. owns a minority (40%)
interest in MFA Holdings.

Asbury Communities, Inc.

System of Senior Living & Health Service Providers
01/2025

o )
 § BROET
LE L R

| 4. GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT |

Management of Bethany Village is led by Brian D. Grundusky. Mr. Grundusky has thirty (30)
years of experience in the senior care field and is the Executive Director of Bethany Village.
Management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations and overall functioning of Bethany Village. |
Several governing boards provide an oversight of
Bethany Village.

o |
Asbury Atlantic, Inc. |
Governance

The Asbury Atlantic, Inc. Board of

The Bethany Village Community Advisory Committee  pirectors s responsible  for

works directly with the Executive Director and is
focused exclusively on Bethany Village’s programs,
quality of care and service, master campus planning,
and fundraising activities (in conjunction with the
Asbury  Foundation). The Community Advisory
Committee communicates community needs and makes
recommendations to the Asbury Atlantic Board
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governing the corporation and its
CCRCs, including Bethany Village.
At least one of the Asbury
Atlantic Directors is a current
resident of one of the Asbury
communities. None of the
Directors have a financial interest
in Asbury Atlantic, Inc. The
officers, except for the chair and
vice chair of the Board of
Directors, are compensated staff
members.

]




regarding its scope of responsibility. The Asbury Atlantic, Inc. Board of Directors is legally
responsible for control of Bethany Village and is primarily responsible for approving budget
and maintaining financial health as well as monitoring quality of care and services. The
Asbury Communities Board of Directors is focused on enhancing the strength of the entire
fulfillment of its purpose and recognizing its full potential for providing services for the

aging.

All decisions regarding Bethany Village are made in accordance with the Asbury mission,
vision, core values, and the charitable purpose of the organization. In making decisions and
setting strategic direction, the management and governing boards are responsible for
considering what is best for current and future residents of Bethany Village as well as the
organization. It is important to bear in mind that resident input is sought and highly
regarded, and residents have a voice in many decisions; however, residents are not part of
management and do not direct the operation of the campus.

Please see Exhibit A for a listing of the Asbury Atlantic, Inc. Directors and Officers.
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Periodic Meetings between Residents and Management

The Executive Director and various members of the Bethany Village management team
meet monthly with the residents at a scheduled Resident Coffee. Topics include operational
updates and other issues of interest to residents. The meetings are held on the first
Thursday of each month in the same location. All residents are invited. Additionally, the
Executive Director conducts financial update reviews on a quarterly basis at these Resident
Coffees.

Services Agreements

Bethany Village receives business services from Asbury Communities, pursuant to a Services
Agreement. Services include financial, information technology, legal, human resources,
governance, clinical, and marketing.

Associates on the Bethany Village campus are not employees of Asbury Communities.
Rather, Asbury Communities employs additional staff to provide support to its affiliated
entities. For example, the human relations department at Asbury Communities negotiates
the benefits packages for all employees in the Asbury Communities system. This
arrangement eliminates the need for Bethany Village to shoulder the burden of hiring all
necessary staff or expertise to provide such services.

The organization also contracts with third party service providers. Examples are its
management services agreement with Sodexo to provide Environmental Services and
Aramark to provide food services in Asbury Communities’ continuing care retirement
communities. Depending on the community, these contracts may include dining,
housekeeping, maintenance, and laundry services. The employees in these departments are
Bethany Village employees, but the manager of each department is a Sodexo or Aramark
employee. By contracting services with Sodexo and Aramark, Bethany Village receives a
consistently high level of service for a lower cost than if each continuing care retirement
community procured or provided these services on its own.

At no time have Asbury Atlantic, Inc., Asbury Communities, Inc., third party service
providers, affiliates and their Directors and Officers been convicted of a felony or pled nolo
contendere to a felony charge or been held liable or enjoined in a civil action by final
judgment. Further, neither the entities nor their respective Directors and Officers are
subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order of a court of record, or within
the past five (5) years has any State or Federal license or permit been suspended or revoked
as a result of an action brought by a governmental agency or department, arising out of or
relating to business activity or healthcare, including without limitation, action affecting a
license to operate a nursing home, retirement home, home for the aged or facility
registered under the State of Pennsylvania or similar acts in another state.
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| 5. SERVICES & FEES

The following services are included in the monthly fee for Apartments, Bethany Residential
Center Apartments and Cottages unless otherwise noted:

Ground maintenance, trash removal, snow removal and exterior repair
Interior maintenance and replacement of Bethany Village supplied appliances
Utilities (except Cottages and Villas)

Basic cable service

24-hour security services

Parking

Use of all campus outdoor areas

Use of private meeting rooms and entertainment areas

Access to campus amenities, social and recreational programs
Well-Being programming (except for special classes)

Scheduled transportation

Move-in coordination services

The following services are available for an extra charge:

Additional dining services for residents and guests
Catering services

Beauty salon

Additional housekeeping services

Additional maintenance services

Unscheduled transportation and medical appointments
Rehabilitation, and personal care services

The cost of residence in Bethany Village MapleWood Assisted Living or The Oaks Skilled
Nursing is not included in the monthly fee for apartments and cottages.

Fees for Assisted Living and The Oaks Skilled Nursing are listed in Exhibit B.

Description of Fees

Bethany Village offers three entry fee options: (1) standard entrance fee; (2) 50 percent
refundable entrance fee, and (3) 80 percent refundable entrance fee. The standard fee
option is lower in cost than the refundable fee options. The standard entrance fee is
amortized over the first 60 months of residency. After 60 months, there is no refundable
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portion of the standard entrance fee remaining. The 50 percent refundable entrance fee
option returns 50 percent of the amount paid by the resident. The 80 percent refundable
entrance fee option returns 80 percent of the entrance fee paid. Refundable entrance fees
are paid when Bethany Village receives an entrance fee from a successor resident for the
vacated unit and the vacating resident no longer resides in any accommodation at the
community. Please see the Residency Agreement for additional details regarding Entrance
Fee refunds.

Type of Fee Entrance Fee Monthly Fee Ancillary Fees

Frequency of | Paid once upon entrance to | Paid Monthly Paid Monthly

Payment community

Other Info Includes refundable* and Covers cost of unit Covers cost of additional
standard entrance fee and other services products and services that
options. Amount depends (see above are not covered in the
upon the fee option and Description of Monthly Fee (see above
unit type/size. Services). Description of Services).

* According to terms and conditions of the Residency Agreement.

In addition to the entrance fee, residents pay a monthly fee, depending upon the size and
type of unit, as well as an ancillary fee for products and services not included in the monthly
fee. A listing of current residential living fees is located in Exhibit B and the historical
monthly fees by unit are located in Exhibit C.

Use of Fees

All fees paid by residents to tAsbury Atlantic \ Fee for Service CCRC

may be used by Asbury Atlantic for any legal |
purpose, including the payment of debt Bethany Village is a Type C, fee for
(principal and interest), the payment of ‘ service continuing care retirement
management fees to Asbury Communities, | community. Residents pay the standard
doing business as Asbury, (to be used by Asbury | per diem fees if they need personal care
for any purpose in keeping with its mission, | or nursing services. The fees do not
vision and tax exempt charitable purpose), the | include any free or d'sc?““md health
transfer of funds to Asbury (to be used by | ¢@re or personal care services. However,
Asbury for any purpose in keeping with its they do MECEIE ;?nonty adm'ss'of‘ 'for ,

. - ) those services. Residents are also eligible

mission, vision and tax exempt charitable .

h ) f . h ‘ for benevolent care support if they
purpose), t.e €xpansion of services on the exhaust their financial resources through
Bethany Village campus or through the no fault of their own.
purchase or construction of a CCRC or other | _J
business or entity serving the organization’s
mission and tax exempt purpose, the creation of a new line of business serving the
organization’s mission and tax exempt purpose, and/or any other purpose.
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Average Annual Cost of Providing Services

The average annual cost of providing care and services during the most recent twelve-
month period is $45,013. Actual costs will vary substantially according to the size of the
living unit, the number of occupants, and upon the extent of additional services which an
occupant uses during the course of the year.

ASBURY
Benevolent Care FOUNDATION

A significant part of the organization’s charitable mission is to ensure that residents who
have outlived their resources through no fault of their own are able to continue to reside at
Bethany Village. This means that residents who have conserved resources will be eligible to
apply for and receive benevolent care support, as long as the provision of such support does
not impair the ability of the organization to operate on a sound financial basis and maintain
the facilities and services for other residents at Bethany Village.

The Asbury Foundation, a 501 (c) (3) not-for-profit organization, actively seeks donations for
benevolent care, including a special endowment fund, to offset the costs of providing this
support.

6. FINANCIAL STRENGTH & STEWARDSHIP

The financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2024, for Asbury Atlantic, Inc. as
audited by ClifionLarsonAllen LLP, a qualified independent certified public

accountant who has not entered into indemnity clauses, which are prohibited in 31 Pa. Code
$147.6(b)(4). Financial Statements are located at Exhibit D.

Pennsylvania Obligated Group

Bethany Village does not have any individual long-term debt. Instead, all its long-term debt
is part of the Pennsylvania Obligated Group. The Pennsylvania Obligated Group is comprised
of Asbury Atlantic, Inc. (Bethany Village and Springhill property only). Both are jointly and
individually responsible for the total long-term debt related to Bethany Village and
Springhill. For financial statement purposes, the long-term debt for liability of principle and
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interest is allocated to the respective community for which the debt was incurred. Since the
inception of the Pennsylvania Obligated Group, there has never been a time that either
Bethany Village or Springhill were unable to pay their share of the debt of the Pennsylvania
Obligated Group.

Being part of the Pennsylvania Obligated Group enables each continuing care retirement
community to obtain the capital funds it requires at a lower interest rate than it could if it
were to borrow the funds individually.

Asbury Communities is not a member of the Pennsylvania Obligated Group. However,
Asbury Communities has contractual obligations to maintain specific liquidity levels and to
provide financial support to the Pennsylvania Obligated Group under certain circumstances.
Asbury also has contractual obligations to maintain specific liquidity levels and to provide
financial support to a separate Maryland Obligated Group under certain circumstances.

Long Term Financing

Currently, the Pennsylvania Obligated Group is responsible for a total long-term debt of
$113,144,084, which is allocated into the following four separate tax-exempt bond

issuances.
Bond Series Type Maturity Date | Principle
Outstanding
(as of 12/31/2024)
2019 PA Bonds Fixed Rate Revenue 2021-2045 51,145,000
Bonds
2021A PA Bonds Fixed Rate Revenue 2034-2041 27,235,000
Bonds
2021B PA Bonds Variable Rate Revenue | 2022-2034 17,225,000
Bonds
2022A PA Bonds | Variable Rate Revenue | 2025-2037 17,539,084
Bonds

Funding Community Enhancement

Bethany Village maintains a statutory reserve of $4,515,860 that is required by Pennsylvania
law.

Springhill maintains a statutory reserve of $1,250,157 that is required by Pennsylvania law.
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Management of Investments

All investment funds are managed pursuant to Investment Guidelines established by the
System Audit & Finance/Investment Committee, which meets quarterly. At each quarterly
meeting, fund performance for the various funds is reported upon, and as necessary, the
Investment Guidelines are changed to meet the needs of the organizational investment
structure. The Committee is populated by Directors with various professional backgrounds
and expertise and are supported by the Chief Financial Officer and Vice President &
Controller. Further, the Committee engages third party consultants as the Committee’s
advisors to its investment portfolio. The advisors provide reports during the Committee’s
meetings, make investments recommendation based on the Investment guidelines and are
available to answer questions.

12|Bethany Village Disclosure Statement



EXHIBIT
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DIRECTORS@39) | | e
| Asbury Communities, Inc.

Efonda Spfoiés, Chair

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
2025

Overlap Boards

Rich Shuman, Vice Chair

Asbury Communities, Inc.

Mariana Matus

Asbury Communities, Inc.

Veronica Hill-Milbourne

Asbury Communities, Inc.

Barbara Harbison *(AMYV)

Todd Andrews

* Resident Board Members

_OFFICERS
Todd Andrews, President

Andrew Joseph, Secretary

Andrew Jeanneret, Treasurer
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Bethany Village
MapleWood Assisted Living
2025 Rate Schedule

Subscribers

Non-Subscribers

Non-Subscribers
Beginning 1/01/2025

Level 1 $276.00 per day | $291.00 per day $306.00 per day
Level 2 $296.00 per day | $311.00 per day $326.00 per day
Level 3 $325.00 per day | $340.00 per day $355.00 per day
Golden Maple,

Memory Support | $351.00 per day | $366.00 per day $381.00 per day
Neighborhood

For couples residing in one suite, the person at the lowest level of care will
receive a $40.00 per day reduction in fees.

Meal Credit ($5.00 per day), Laundry Credit ($0.35 per day) and Housekeeping
Credit ($0.45 per day) will be issued if a resident is admitted to a Health Care
Center or Medical treatment facility, or if absent for more than 7 consecutive
days.

Subscribers are residents who have paid an entrance fee or residents that were
admitted prior to December 1, 2005.

I, , hereby acknowledge receipt

(Print Name & Signature of Payer)

of the 2025 Rate Schedule for Bethany Village, MapleWood Assisted Living.
(Date)

Please sign one copy and return in the enclosed envelope to:
Bethany Village, MapleWood Assisted Living
Bridget Walling, Administrator
5225 Wilson Lane, Door #21
Mechanicsburg, PA 17055

Or fax to: 717-591-0279, Attn: Bridget Walling

Or email to: bwalling@asbury.org



Bethany Village
The Oaks, Skilled Nursing
2025 Rate Schedule

Semi-private room $490.00 per day

Private Room $551.00 per day

Colonial Heights Neighborhood, | $606.00 per day
Memory Support




Bethany Village
Residential Living
2025 Rate Schedule

Bethany Center:

Oxford Rental

$1798 per month

Strawbridge Rental

$2228 per month

Second person fee

$500 per month

Bethany Court:

St. Simons $2079 per month
Nashville $2371 per month
Dayton $2406 per month
Junaluska $2604 per month
Nashville I $2638 per month
Junaluska ll $2718 per month

Second person fee

$500 per month

East Cottages:

Contract B

$1821 per month

Second person fee
(New Residents after 1/01/2024)

$250

West Apartments:
Penn $2940 per month
Eisenhower $3200 per month
| Meade $3200 per month
Carnegie $3291 per month
Marshall $3344 per month
Buchanan $3407 per month
Franklin $3462 per month

Second person fee

$500 per month

West Cottages & Estate Homes:

Aspen $2219 per month
Hickory $2219 per month
Chestnut $2219 per month
Estate Home $3187 per month

Second person fee
(New Residents after 1/01/2024)

$250
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Floor Plan
Oxford - RENTAL
Strawbridge - RENTAL

Second Person Fee

St. Simons
Nashville
Dayton
Junaluska
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Junaluska Il

Second Person Fee

East Cottage (Contract A)
East Cottage (Contract B)

Second Person Fee

Aspen
Hickory
Chestnut
Estate Home

Second Person Fee

Penn
Eisenhower
Meade
Carnegie
Marshall
Buchanan
Franklin

Second Person Fee

AL Level 1

AL Level 1 (non-subscriber)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Audit Committee
Asbury Atlantic, Inc.
Frederick, Maryland

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Asbury Atlantic, Inc., which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of operations and
changes in net deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Asbury Atlantic, Inc. as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Asbury Atlantic, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Asbury Atlantic, Inc.’s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be
issued.

15a 0 of CL See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer
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Audit Committee
Asbury Atlantic, Inc.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Asbury Atlantic, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Asbury Atlantic, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

@



Audit Committee
Asbury Atlantic, Inc.

Supplementary Information

Our audit were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The information listed under “Accompanying Information” on the table of contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the information
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

WMW L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Timonium, Maryland
April 17, 2025
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Credit Losses
Other Receivables and Prepaid Expenses
Investments Held under Bond Indenture
Total Current Assets

Due from ACOMM, Net

Property and Equipment, Net

Right-Of-Use Assets - Operating Leases, Net
Right-Of-Use Assets - Finance Leases, Net
Investments Restricted by Donors

Deposits and Other Assets

Investments Held under Bond Indenture
Statutory Reserves

Investments Restricted by Board

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Foundation
Valuation of Derivative Instruments

Total Assets

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

“4)

2024 2023
$ 8,332,523 $ 6,669,482
43,484,907 42,559,342
7,835,496 6,752,059
(1,658,188) (1,261,922)
10,862,056 9,721,854
9,553,877 9,548,702
78,410,671 73,989,517
108,217,175 98,808,634
272,973,012 266,376,676
590,641 1,036,571
137,178 283,850
16,664,382 14,886,535
275,672 388,323
16,849,695 22,074,397
28,793,630 27,402,558
5,319,953 4,907,792
35,166,561 35,036,729
2,698,986 2,259,547
$ 566,097 456 $ 547451129




ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

LIABILITIES AND NET DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $

Accrued Interest Payable

Obligations under Charitable Gift Annuities

Deposits from Prospective Residents

Entrance Fees - Refundable

Deferred Revenue

Current Portion of Lease Liabilities - Operating Leases
Current Portion of Lease Liabilities - Finance Leases
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Lease Liabilities - Operating Leases, Net of Current
Long-Term Lease Liabilities - Finance Leases, Net of Current
Long-Term Debt, Less Current Portion

Contingent Refundable Entrance Fee Liability

Entrance Fees - Deferred Revenue

Obligations under Charitable Gift Annuities

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Deficit

2024 2023
1,330,522 1,391,680
4,887,748 5,079,674
61,303 74,702
4,600,095 3,730,195
5,584,436 7,387,527
1,070,408 1,166,738
413,830 452,092
76,338 158,540
11,431,357 10,462,276
29,456,037 29,903,424
176,811 584,479
29,955 96,106
230,116,202 234,527,499
135,549,148 145,811,933
194,486,275 186,606,917
79,844 116,865
1,500,000 1,500,000
591,394,272 599,147,223

(67,812,755) (94,106,275)
42,515,939 42,410,181

(25,296,816) (51,696,094)

Total Liabilities and Net Deficit

$ 566,097 456

$ 547,451,129

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET DEFICIT
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT
Resident Services Revenue $ 153,443,704 $ 146,066,652
Other Operating Revenue 2,436,045 4,921,970
Amortization of Entrance Fees 30,025,130 27,294,242
Interest and Dividend Income, Net 5,826,139 4,534,102
Net Realized Gain (Loss) on Investments 9,633,955 (1,934,387)
Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Equity Security Investments (3,070,610) 8,736,543
Allocations from Asbury Foundation, Inc. 7,952,066 10,033,732
Total Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 206,246,429 199,652,854
EXPENSES
Salaries 61,866,713 60,198,697
Employee Benefits 13,580,832 13,182,185
Contract Labor 9,030,195 9,783,047
Food Purchases 6,620,006 6,168,814
Medical Supplies and Other Resident Costs 5,148,809 5,085,493
General and Administrative 2,827,225 2,771,048
Building and Maintenance 17,806,853 18,162,559
Professional Fees and Insurance 2,095,322 1,907,838
Interest 10,496,937 10,541,646
Taxes 4,342,667 4,266,786
Provision for Credit Losses 918,067 796,041
Depreciation and Amortization 28,797,143 28,499,904
Service and Other Fees 19,713,418 19,003,218
Total Expenses 183,254,187 180,367,276
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS PRIOR TO NET UNREALIZED
GAIN (LOSS) ON CHANGE IN MARKET VALUE OF DERIVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS AND GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 22,992,242 19,285,578
Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Change in Market Value of
Derivative Instruments 439,439 (268,079)
Gain on Disposal of Assets 528,564 4,040,882
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 23,960,245 23,058,381

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET DEFICIT (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NET DEFICIT WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Income from Operations
Net Unrealized Gain on Fixed Income Securities
and Other Investments
Net Assets Released from Restrictions Used for Purchase
of Capital ltems
Transfers to ACOMM
Net Decrease in Net Deficit Without Donor Restrictions

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for
Purchase of Capital ltems

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Asbury
Foundation, Inc.

Changes in Value of Obligations under Charitable Gift Annuities
Net Increase in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

CHANGES IN NET DEFICIT
Net Deficit - Beginning of Year

NET DEFICIT - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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2024 2023

$ 23,960,245 $ 23,058,381
1,078,589 418,030
1,863,186 423,753
(608,500) (647,250)
26,293,520 23,252,914
(1,863,186) (423,753)
1,993,018 2,459,134
(24,074) (33,424)

105,758 2,001,957

26,399,278 25,254,871
(51,696,094) (76,950,965)

$  (25,296.816)

$__(51.696,094)




ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Changes in Net Deficit
Adjustments to Reconcile Changes in Net Deficit to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Pravision for Credit Losses
Depreciation and Amortization
Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs
Amortization of Band Premium/Discount
Amortization of Right-of-Use Asset - Finance Leases
Amortization of Entrance Fees
Net Proceeds from Nonrefundable Entrance Fees
Net Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Investments
Net Realized (Gain) Loss on Investments
Gain on Disposal of Assets
Net Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Change in Market Value of Derivative Instruments
Changes in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Foundation
Changes in Value of Obligations Under Charitable Gift Annuities
Transfers to ACOMM
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Other Receivables and Prepaid Expenses
Deferred Entrance Fees
Other Assets
Deferred Revenue
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accrued Interest Payable
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property and Equipment, Net
Purchases of Investments
Sales of Investments

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Refundable Entrance Fees and Refundable Deposits
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt
Refunds from Refundable Entrance Fees and Refundable Deposits
Payments on Debt
Payments for Deferred Financing Costs
Payments on Finance Leases
Payments on Obligations under Charitable Gift Annuities
Change in Due to ACOMM, Net
Transfers to ACOMM
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

DECREASE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash - Beginning of Year
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Right-of-Use Asset Received in Exchange for Operating Leases

Right-of-Use Asset Received in Exchange for Finance Leases

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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2024 2023
26,399,278 25,254,871
918,067 796,041
28,632,626 28,342,262
234,025 291,995
(780,550) (780,550)
164,517 157,642
(30,025,130) (27,294,242)
38,301,150 39,046,668
1,992,021 (9,154,573)
{9,633,955) 1,934,387
(528,564) (4,040,882)
(439,439) 268,079
(129,832) (2,035,381)
24,074 33,424
608,500 647,250
{1,605,238) (1,157,444)
405,589 (853,763)
(1,545,791) (1,001,244)
112,751 105,207
(1,871,369) (330,642)
(61,158) (2.241,716)
(191,926) (362,337)
50,979,646 47,535,052
(34,700,398) (25,505,053)
(103,134,343) (46,345,315)
107,660,704 45,165,285
(30,174,037) (26,685,083)
7,321,477 10,245,097
8,029,603 7,055,473
(17,139,076) (20,252,300)
(10,923,194) (9,736,238)
(2,100) (19,938)
(166,198) (155,403)
(74,494) (64,484)
(9,408,541) (22,353,258)
(608.500) (647,250)
(22,971,023) (35.928,310)
(2,165,414) (15,078,341)
65,695,139 80,773,480
63,529,725 65,695,139
11,235,388 11,392,538
313,356 4,534
170,154 170,895




NOTE 1

NOTE 2

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

ORGANIZATION

Asbury Atlantic, Inc. (Asbury Atlantic or the Company) is a nonprofit, nonstock corporation
organized under the laws of the state of Maryland and is a supported organization of
Asbury Communities, Inc. (ACOMM). ACOMM is the sole member of Asbury Atlantic.
Asbury Atlantic has operating entities comprised of Asbury Methodist Village (AMV), Asbury
Solomons (AS), Bethany Village (BV), and Springhill (SH).

AMV and AS are continuing-care retirement communities (CCRC) located in Gaithersburg,
Maryland and Calvert County, Maryland, respectively. BV and SH are CCRCs located in
Mechanicsburg, Pennsylvania and Erie, Pennsylvania, respectively. A CCRC consists of
independent living, assisted living, and skilled-nursing units. A CCRC provides a continuum
of care that includes housing, health care, and other related healthcare and lifestyle services
to seniors. Cash transferred from Asbury Atlantic to ACOMM during 2024 and 2023 was not
required at Asbury Atlantic to fund daily operations, meet debt covenants, or fulfill regulatory
requirements.

ACOMM serves as the supporting organization of Asbury Atlantic; Asbury Communities
HCBS, Inc. (HCBS), Bethany Development Corp. (BDC); Albright Care Services (Albright);
and Asbury Living, Inc. (Asbury Living). Asbury Living has operating entities comprised of
Grace Park (GP) and Ivy Gables (IG). ACOMM is the sole voting stockholder of The Asbury
Group, Inc. (TAG). Additionally, ACOMM is the sole member of Asbury Foundation, Inc.
(AFOUND).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

(9)



ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts held in checking and savings accounts, money
market accounts, and short-term certificates of deposit with original maturities of 90 days or
less. Cash balances are principally uninsured and subject to normal credit risks. Cash and
cash equivalents within funds identified as investments held under bond indenture and
statutory reserves are considered restricted in nature.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash
reported within the balance sheets that equal the same such amounts shown in the
statements of cash flows at December 31:

2024 2023
Cash $ 8,332,523 $ 6,669,482
Restricted Cash Included in Current Investments
Held under Bond Indenture 9,553,877 9,548,702
Restricted Cash Included in Long-Term Investments
Held under Bond Indenture 16,849,695 22,074,397
Restricted Cash Included in Statutory Reserves 28,793,630 27,402,558
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted
Cash Shown in the Statements of Cash Flows $ 63,529,725 $ 65,695,139

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses

Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for credit losses to represent the
Company’s estimate of expected losses at the balance sheet date. The adequacy of the
Company'’s allowance for credit losses is reviewed on an ongoing basis, using historical
payment trends, write-off experience, analyses of receivable portfolios by payor source and
aging of receivables, a review of specific accounts, as well as expected future economic
conditions and market trends, and adjustments are made to the allowance as necessary.

Residents are not required to provide collateral for services rendered. Payment for services
is required within 30 days of receipt of invoice or claim submitted. Accounts more than 90
days past due are individually analyzed for collectability. When all collection efforts have
been exhausted, the account is written off against the related allowance.

Under the Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement and other third-party agreements,
amounts collected for services to patients under these agreements are computed at
contractually agreed-upon rates. Accounts receivable have been adjusted to reflect the
difference between charges and the reimbursable amounts under these third-party
contracts. Revenues from Medicare and Medicaid programs and other third-party
agreements accounted for approximately 22% and 21% of total resident service revenues
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Management believes the composition of receivables at year-end is consistent with
historical conditions as credit terms and practices and the customer base has not changed
significantly. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the allowance for estimate of expected credit
losses was $1,658,188 and $1,261,922, respectively.

(10)



NOTE 2

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses (Continued)

Changes in the allowance for credit losses for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 were as follows:

2024 2023
Balance, Beginning of Year $ 1,261,922 $ 1,001,045
Provision for Losses 905,822 788,996
Amounts Written Off (516,368) (635,164)
Recoveries 6,812 7,045
Balance, End of Year $ 1658,188 $ 1261922

Investments and Investment Income

Substantially all investments are held in an investment account with ACOMM. The
investment pools are comprised of equity securities or equity mutual funds, bonds or bond
mutual funds, alternative investments and cash. The equity securities and the related
unrealized gains or losses are recorded above income from operations. The fixed income
securities and other types of investments and their related unrealized gains or losses are
recorded below income from operations. The investments are managed by the ACOMM
board with guidance from external investment advisors. In addition, investments held under
bond indenture are high-grade income securities.

If market quotations are not readily available for a security or if subsequent events suggest
that a market quotation is not reliable, the funds will use the security’s fair value, using
consistently applied procedures established by and under the general supervision of the
funds' manager. This generally means that equity securities and fixed income securities
listed and traded principally on any national securities exchange are valued on the basis of
the last sale price or, lacking any sales, at the closing bid price, on the primary exchange on
which the security is traded. The funds’ manager may involve subjective judgments as to the
fair value of securities. The use of fair value pricing by the funds may cause the net asset
value of fund units to differ significantly from the net asset value that would be calculated
using current market values.

Accordingly, valuations do not necessarily represent the amounts that might be realized
from sales or other dispositions of investments, nor do they reflect taxes or other expenses
that might be incurred upon disposition. Mortgage loans held by the underlying funds have
been valued on the basis of principal and interest payment terms discounted at currently
prevailing interest rates for similar investments. The fair values relating to certain alternative
investments have been estimated by the funds’ manager in the absence of readily
ascertainable market values. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuations of the
investments held by the underlying funds, their estimated values may differ significantly from
the values that would have been used had a ready market for these investments existed,
and the differences could be material.

Investment returns are allocated to Asbury Atlantic based on its proportion of its underlying
holdings. The portion of investments that is available to fund current operating activities is
included in current assets in the accompanying balance sheets. Donated investments are
reported at their fair values at date of receipt.
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NOTE 2

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and Investment Income (Continued)

Investment income or loss from equity securities, mutual funds, bonds, and alternative
investments includes Asbury Atlantic’s proportional share of interest and dividends, net of
investment management fees, realized gains and losses on investments, and unrealized
gains and losses on equity security investments and are included in the income (loss) from
operations. Investment income or loss is included in income (loss) from operations unless
restricted by donor or law. Unrealized gains and losses on fixed income securities or other
investments with readily determinable market values are excluded from income (loss) from
operations unless the losses are deemed to be other-than-temporary.

As the need arises, the Company evaluates whether any declines in the fair values of
investments are other-than-temporary. This evaluation consists of a review of several
factors, including, but not limited to length of time and extent that a security has been in an
unrealized loss position, the existence of an event that would impair the issuer's future
earnings potential, the near-term prospects for recovery of the market value of a security
and the intent and ability of the Company to hold the security until the market value
recovers. Declines in fair value below cost that are deemed to be other-than-temporary are
removed from unrealized changes in market value and are recorded as losses and Asbury
Atlantic’s proportionate share is included in investment income in the accompanying
statements of operations and changes in net deficit.

The investment policy of the Company provides a balance of long-term growth and
preservation of capital of the assets while managing a core segment of assets in a manner
specifically designed to meet the ongoing capital requirements of the Company and other
requirements specified under the terms of its financing agreements.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Company relies on an investment
strategy that allocates its investments among a number of asset classes. These asset
classes may include: domestic equity, domestic fixed income, international equity, cash
equivalents, and other alternative strategies and products. The purpose of allocating among
asset classes is to ensure a diversification to achieve the portfolio’s investment objectives.
The Company believes that this investment strategy meets the Company’s long-term rate-of-
return objectives while avoiding undue risk from imprudent concentration in any single asset
class or investment vehicle. In order to ensure that ACOMM continues to meet its objectives,
the Company has established rebalancing guidelines and established mechanisms for
ongoing monitoring of performance and risk.

Derivatives Policy — Debt

The Company manages some of its exposure to interest rate volatility through use of
interest rate swap contracts. These contracts qualify as derivative financial instruments. The
book values of the derivative instruments are adjusted to their estimated fair values at each
balance sheet date. The Company has determined that, for continuing operations, the
Company's derivatives do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting and, therefore, the
change in fair value of all of the derivative instruments are included within the Company’s
performance indicator, income (loss) from operations.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments Restricted by the Board

Investments restricted by the board include assets set aside by the ACOMM board of
directors (the board) for benevolent care. The board retains control of these assets and
may, at its discretion, subsequently use them for other board-designated purposes.

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Foundation

The Company records an interest in the net assets of AFOUND resulting from contributions
with donor restrictions that are solicited and held by AFOUND to be used for the benefit of
Asbury Atlantic based on donor designation and intent.

Leases

The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are
included in right-of-use (ROU) assets-operating lease and lease liability-operating leases,
and finance leases are included in right-of-use (ROU) assets-finance leases and lease
liability- finance leases in the balance sheets. The Company has elected to recognize
payments for short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less as expense as
incurred and these leases are not included as lease liabilities or ROU assets on the balance
sheets.

ROU assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term
and lease liabilities represent the Company's obligation to make lease payments arising
from the lease. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on
the present value of lease payments over the lease term. Lease terms may include options
to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise
that option. Lease expense for operating lease payments is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The individual lease contracts do not provide information about the discount rate implicit in
the lease. Therefore, the Company has elected to use a risk-free discount rate determined
using a period comparable with that of the lease term for computing the present value of
lease liabilities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment are recorded at
fair market value at the date of the gift. Improvements that materially extend the useful lives
of the assets are capitalized. General repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as
incurred. The Company capitalizes all expenditures for property and equipment costing
$5,000 or more and having useful lives greater than two years.

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds and financing costs during the period of
construction of capital assets are capitalized as components of the cost of acquiring those
assets.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property and Equipment (Continued)

The Company reviews its property for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. When
recovery is reviewed, if the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the
property are less than its carrying amount, management compares the carrying amount of
the property to its fair value in order to determine whether an impairment loss has occurred.
The amount of impairment loss is equal to the excess of the asset's carrying value over its
estimated fair value. No impairment loss was recognized during 2024 and 2023,

Advertising Expenses

The cost of advertising is expensed when incurred and included within the general and
administrative financial statement line item within the statements of operations and changes
in net deficit. Advertising expense was $375,332 and $447,869 for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Deposits from Prospective Residents

Deposits from prospective residents are refundable until such time as the prospective
resident executes a residency agreement and pays the balance of the entrance fee. Interest
earned on these deposits belongs to Asbury Atlantic.

Continuing-Care Contracts

Asbury Atlantic offers continuing-care contracts to its residents. These contracts include
residential facilities, meals, and other amenities, as well as priority access to health care
services.

Resident Services Revenue

Resident services revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for providing resident care. These amounts
are due from residents, third-party payors (including health insurers and government
programs), and others and includes variable consideration for retroactive revenue
adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the
Company bills the residents and third-party payors several days after the services are
performed. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Company. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual charges. The Company believes that this method provides a faithful depiction of the
transfer of services over the term of the performance obligation based on the inputs needed
to satisfy the obligation. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to
residents in the facility receiving skilled nursing services or residents receiving services in
the facility. The Company measures the performance obligation from admission into the
facility, or the commencement of an outpatient service, to the point when it is no longer
required to provide services to that resident, which is generally at the time of discharge or
completion of the outpatient services. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a
point in time is generally recognized when goods are provided to the residents and the
Company does not believe it is required to provide additional goods or services related to
that sale.

(14)



NOTE 2

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Resident Services Revenue (Continued)

The Company determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and
services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors,
discounts provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Company’s policy and/or
implicit price concessions provided to residents. The Company determines its estimates of
contractual adjustments based on contractual agreements, its policies, and historical
experience. The Company determines its estimate of implicit price concessions based on its
historical collection experience.

Asbury Atlantic offers four types of resident entrance fee options: a standard entrance fee
(SEF) that amortizes over fifty (50) months, a 50% refundable entrance fee, an 80%
refundable entrance fee, and a nonrefundable entrance fee (NREF). Previously, Asbury
Atlantic offered a one hundred percent (100%) refundable, a ninety percent (90%)
refundable, a twenty-five percent (25%) refundable, a SEF that amortized over five (5)
years, and a SEF that amortized over nine (9) years.

Under the current SEF that amortizes over fifty months, the refund balance declines 2% per
month over the fifty-month period. Under the prior SEF that amortizes over five years, the
refund balance declines 1.667% per month over the five-year period. Under the prior SEF
that amortizes over nine years, 10% of the fee is nonrefundable upon receipt, and 10% per
annum of the fee becomes nonrefundable over the nine-year period. After the fifty-month,
five-year, and nine-year periods, the refund is fully amortized and there is no refundable
portion. Under the NREF, the entrance fee is not refundable as of the resident’s designated
occupancy date or actual date of occupancy, whichever is earlier. Under the refundable
contracts, resident's pay a higher entrance fee in order to guarantee a specific percentage
refund of the entrance fee upon termination of the residency agreement. Payment of an
entrance fee refund is contingent upon termination of occupancy and a successor resident
taking possession of the original residential unit.

The nonrefundable entrance fees are classified as deferred revenue and are recognized as
revenue on a straight-line basis over each individual resident’s, or couple’s, expected
remaining life, adjusted annually (time-based measurement).

Refundable entrance fees are recorded in the accompanying balance sheets as current
liabilities. Remaining life expectancies are determined based on current actuarial data
specific to CCRC residents. Upon termination of a contract through death or withdrawal after
occupancy, any unamortized, nonrefundable deferred entrance fee is recorded as income.

The gross amounts of refund obligations are summarized below and are categorized as
refundable entrance fees and standard entrance fees. The contingent refundable entrance
fees are fixed in their amounts but are refundable upon termination of occupancy and the
receipt of a successor entrance fee. Standard entrance fees are refundable upon
termination of occupancy and the receipt of a successor entrance fee, and the amount of
refund is based upon the length of stay in the community.
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NOTE 2

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Resident Services Revenue (Continued)

Contingent refundable entrance fee liability represents an entrance fee which is refunded
only upon termination of occupancy and reoccupancy by a subsequent resident. Entrance
fees — deferred revenue represents the unamortized portion of the nonrefundable entrance
fees.

A summary of net entrance fees is as follows at December 31:

2024 2023
Entrance Fees - Refundable $ 5,584,436 $ 7,387,527
Contingent Refundable Entrance Fees 135,549,148 145,811,933
Entrance Fees - Deferred Revenue:
25% to 100% Refundable Contracts 7,100,983 6,873,333
Standard Entrance Fee Option Contracts:
Five-Year Contracts 178,697,148 177,766,802
Nine-Year Contracts 633,668 801,973
Fifty-Month Contracts 6,979,390 -
Nonrefundable 1,075,086 1,164,809
Total Entrance Fees - Deferred Revenue 194,486,275 186,606,917

Total Entrance Fees $ 335,619,859 $ 339,806,377

Asbury Atlantic records revenue related to resident room and board, which, depending upon
the facility and contract type, could also include housekeeping, laundry, and dining services.
Revenue for physical, occupational, and speech therapy, as well as health, personal care,
and social ancillary charges, is also recorded. Revenue is recognized when services are
performed.

The composition of resident services by primary payor is as follows at December 31:

2024 2023
Medicaid 16,634,451 16,671,179
Medicare 16,576,722 13,376,630
Managed Care 1,112,669 1,217,549
Private Pay 119,119,862 114,801,294

Total Resident Services Revenue

Revenue from resident’s deductibles and coinsurance are included in the categories
presented above based on the primary payor.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Resident Services Revenue (Continued)
The composition of resident services revenue based on its service lines, method of

reimbursement, and timing of revenue recognition are as follows at December 31:

2024
Asbury
Methodist Asbury Bethany
Village Solomons, Inc. Village Springhill Total
Service Lines:
Skilled Nursing Facility $ 32259475 § 6,220,644 $ 12,579,599 $ 10,146,546 $ 61,206,264
Assisted Living 15,247,999 2,418,077 9,931,480 2,211,799 29,809,355
Independent Living 32,204,621 11,533,037 11,595,443 6,299,774 61,632,875
Retail Sales 219,733 72,784 262,078 240,615 795,210
Total $ 79931828 _$ 20244542 $ 34368600 $ 18898734 $ 153.443.704
Method of Reimbursement:
Fee for Services $ 79712095 § 20,171,758 $ 34,106,522 $ 18,658,119 $ 152,648,494
Retail Sales 219,733 72,784 262,078 240,615 795,210
Total $ 79931828 _§ 20244542 _$ 34,368.600 _$ 18898734 $ 153443704
Timing of Revenue and
Recognition:
Health Care Services
Transferred Over Time $ 79,712,095 § 20,171,758 § 34,106,522 $ 18,658,119 $ 152,648494
Sales at Point in Time 219,733 72,784 262,078 240,615 795,210
Total $ 79931828 $ 20244542 _$ 34368600 § 18898734 $ 153,443,704
2023
Asbury
Methodist Asbury Bethany
Village Solomons, Inc. Village Springhill Total
Service Lines:
Skilled Nursing Facility $ 29,447,831 § 6358212 $ 12410592 § 10,300,369 $ 58,517,004
Assisted Living 13,375,251 2,172,288 9,719,817 2,321,779 27,589,135
Independent Living 31,339,643 10,635,130 11,204,207 6,032,679 59,211,659
Retail Sales 172,959 73,218 273,803 228,874 748,854
Total $ 74335684 _$ 19238848 _§ 33608419 $ 18883701 3 146066652
Method of Reimbursement:
Fee for Services $ 74,162,725 $ 19,165630 $ 33,334,616 $ 18,654,827 $ 145,317,798
Retail Sales 172,959 73,218 273,803 228,874 748,854
Total § 74335684 _§ 19238848 _§ 33608419 _§ 18883701 _§ 146,066,652
Timing of Revenue and
Recognition:
Health Care Services
Transferred Over Time $ 74162725 $ 19,165,630 $ 33,334,616 § 18,654,827 $ 145,317,798
Sales at Point in Time 172,959 73,218 273,803 228 874 748,854
Total $ 74335684 _$ 19238848 _$ 33608419 _$ 18883701 $ 146,066.652
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract Costs

The Company has applied the practical expedient provided by Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification 340-40-25-4 and all
incremental resident contract acquisition costs are expensed as they are incurred as the
amortization period of the asset that the Company otherwise would have recognized is one
year or less in duration,

Benevolent Care

Asbury Atlantic’s policy is to track those expenses for residents in its facilities who cannot
pay for all or a portion of their care and to define these expenses as benevolent care.
Because Asbury Atlantic does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as
benevolent care, they are not reflected as revenue in the accompanying financial
statements. Benevolent care provided to residents for the years ended December 31, 2024
and 2023 was $3,086,426 and $3,495,125, respectively.

Occupancy Percentages

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the occupancy percentages and the
percentages of Skilled Nursing Center (SNF) residents covered under the Medicaid
program, Medicare program, and private pay and other were as follows:

2024 2023
Asbury Asbury Asbury Asbury
Bethany Methodist Solomons,  Bethany Methodist  Solomons,
Village Springhill__ Village Inc. Village Springhill Village Inc.
Total Skilled Nursing
Center Occupancy 96% 92% 95% 74% 96% 91% 95% 81%
Medicaid 26% 46% 46% 37% 29% 42% 50% 36%
Medicare 8% 3% 29% 15% 7% 3% 23% 10%
Private Pay and Other 66% 51% 25% 48% 64% 55% 27% 54%

Provider Relief Funds

During 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of Coronavirus Disease
(COVID-19) a worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic had significant effects on
global markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities.

Due to the Coronavirus pandemic, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) made available emergency relief grant funds to health care providers through the
CARES Act Provider Relief Fund (PRF). Additionally, the U.S. Department of Homeland
Security made available emergency relief grant funds through the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA). Total grant funds approved and received by the Company for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $-0- and $3,734,822, respectively. The
PRF and FEMA funds are subject to certain restrictions on eligible expenses or uses,
reporting requirements, and will be subject to audit.
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NOTE 2

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provider Relief Funds (Continued)

At December 31 2024, the Company reduced other operating revenue by $2,058 and at
December 31, 2023 the Company recognized $3,224,321 as other operating revenue in the
statements of operations and changes in net deficit. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the
Company recognized $512,559 and $510,501, respectively, as deferred revenue in the
balance sheets. The Company believes the amounts have been recognized appropriately as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to Asbury Atlantic are reported at fair
value at the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of
intentions to give are reported at fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are
reported restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is fulfilled, these net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of
operations and changes in net deficit as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-
restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are
reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying statements of operations and
changes in net deficit. Net assets with donor restrictions that are permanent in nature
represent donor-restricted endowments to be held in perpetuity.

Net Assets and Endowment Funds

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and
reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Include net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. At times, the
governing board can designate, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for
a board-designated endowment or other purposes.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Include net assets subject to donor-imposed
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those
that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other
donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that
resources be maintained in perpetuity. The Company has adopted an enacted version of
the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, which requires enhanced
disclosures for all endowment funds. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a
restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource has been fulfilled, or both.

Net assets with donor restrictions that are temporary in nature consist of assets held on
behalf of Asbury Atlantic, Inc. by AFOUND and BV. The temporary restricted net assets fulfill
donor intent by providing for programs, equipment and other health and educational
services based on donor designation.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Net Assets and Endowment Funds (Continued)

Net assets with donor restrictions that are perpetual in nature are amounts held by AFOUND
and BV for the benefit of Asbury Atlantic, Inc. The objectives of these net assets are
providing long-term growth of capital and maximizing the return on assets over the long-term
while diversifying investments within asset classes to reduce the impact of losses in single
investments. The income from these net assets can be unrestricted or temporarily restricted
based on donor intent to primarily support benevolent care and other services based on
donor designation.

Income (Loss) from Operations

The accompanying statements of operations and changes in net deficit include income from
operations, which is the Asbury Atlantic’s performance indicator. Changes in net deficit
without donor restrictions, which are excluded from income (loss) from operations,
consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on fixed income
securities and other investments, net assets released from restriction used for purchase of
capital items, and permanent transfers of assets to and from ACOMM for other than goods
and services.

Tax Status

Asbury Atlantic members are each exempt from federal income taxes pursuant to Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC); accordingly no provision for income taxes is
required as there are no unrelated trades or businesses.

ACOMM has implemented processes to ensure compliance with the Internal Revenue
Service’s intermediate sanctions provisions for all its supported organizations, including
Asbury Atlantic. This includes an independent review by the compensation committee of the
board of all compensation arrangements with disqualified persons and outside
compensation consultants to provide independent third-party review and advisement, and
the implementation of a detailed conflict-of-interest policy and annual disclosure process for
all disqualified persons. The compensation committee also hires outside counsel to advise
the Company on compliance.

The tax benefit from an uncertain tax position must be recognized only if it is more likely
than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities,
based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial
statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a
greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate resolution. The Company’s
reassessment of its tax positions did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of
operations or financial position.

The Company's income tax return is subject to review and examination by federal, state,

and local authorities. The Company is not aware of any activities that would jeopardize its
tax-exempt status.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price).
The Company utilizes market data or assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market
corroborated, or generally unobservable.

The Company primarily applies the market approach for recurring fair value measurements
and endeavors to utilize the best available information. Accordingly, the Company utilizes
valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The Company is able to classify fair value balances based on the
observability of those inputs.

The Company's assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurements requires judgment and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and
liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels. Financial assets and
liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measurement. Also, the time between inception and performance of the
contract may affect the fair value. The determination of fair value may, therefore, affect the
timing of recognition of revenues and net income.

Fair value measurement applies to reported balances that are required or permitted to be
measured at fair value under an existing accounting standard. The Company emphasizes
that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement.
Therefore, a fair value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair value
hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy consists of three levels of inputs that may be used to
measure fair value as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access.

Level 2 — Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 ~ Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity’s own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety.
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DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

NOTE 3

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Additionally, from time to time, the Company may be required to record at fair value other
assets on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. These adjustments to fair value usually result from the
application of the lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write down of individual assets. The
Company has determined that there would be no impact to the accompanying financial
statements as a result of the application of this standard. Nonfinancial assets measured at
fair value on a nonrecurring basis would include nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liabilities measured at fair value in the second step of a goodwill impairment test, other real
estate owned, and other intangible assets measured at fair value for impairment
assessment.

The Company also adopted the policy of valuing certain financial instruments at fair value.
This accounting policy allows entities the irrevocable option to elect fair value for the initial
and subsequent measurement for certain financial assets and liabilities on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The Company has not elected to measure any existing financial
instruments at fair value, however it may elect to measure newly acquired financial
instruments at fair value in the future.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through April 17, 2025, the date the
financial statements were issued.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company has working capital of $48,954,634 and
$44,086,093, respectively.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2024 2023
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,332,523 $ 6,669,482
Investments 43,484,907 42,559,342
Accounts Receivable, Net 6,177,308 5,490,137
Other Receivables 10,862,056 9,721,854
Investments Held Under Bond Indenture 9,553,877 9,548,702
Total Financial Assets _$ 78.410.671 $ 73989517
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NOTE 3

NOTE 4

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY (CONTINUED)

The Company has certain investments, including the current portion of investments held
under bond indenture, which are available for general expenditure within one year in the
normal course of operations. Accordingly, these assets have been included in the qualitative
information above. The Company has other assets limited to use for board-restricted
purposes, statutory liquid reserves, and noncurrent portion of investments held under bond
indenture. These assets limited to use, which are more fully described in Note 6 are not
available for general expenditure within the next year and are not reflected in the amounts
above. However, the board-designated amounts could be made available, if necessary.

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

Medicare and Medicaid

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded
estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. Asbury Atlantic believes that it
is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or
threatened investigations involving allegation of potential wrongdoing. While no such
regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be
subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory
action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

Medicare Reimbursement

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) utilize the Patient Driven
Payment Model (PDPM) Medicare reimbursement system. Under PDPM, therapy
minutes are removed as the primary basis for payment and instead uses the underlying
complexity and clinical needs of a patient as a basis for reimbursement. In addition,
PDPM introduces variable adjustment factors that change reimbursement rates during
the resident’s length of stay. Annual cost reports are required to be submitted to the
designated Medicare Administrative Contractor; however, they do not contain a cost
settlement.

Under PDPM, therapy minutes are removed as the primary basis for payment and
instead uses the underlying complexity and clinical needs of a patient as a basis for
reimbursement. In addition, PDPM introduces variable adjustment factors that change
reimbursement rates during the resident’s length of stay.

Nursing facilities licensed for participation in the Medicare and Medical Assistance
programs are subject to annual licensure renewal. If it is determined that a nursing
facility is not in substantial compliance with the requirements of participation, CMS may
impose sanctions and penalties during the period of noncompliance. Such a payment
ban would have a negative impact on the revenues of the licensed nursing facility.
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DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE4 REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Medicare and Medicaid (Continued)

Maryland Medicaid Reimbursement

Under the Maryland Medical Assistance Program (Maryland Medicaid), a facility’s
resident care day rate is comprised of four cost centers: (1) administrative and routine
(i.e. administration, training, laundry, housekeeping), (2) other patient care (i.e.
pharmacy, food, social services, recreation), (3) capital (i.e. real estate tax and fair rental
value), and (4) nursing services (all direct care).

Maryland Medicaid calculates annual regional prices on a state fiscal year basis for
administrative and routine costs as well as other patient care costs. Facility-specific
capital rates are set based on real estate taxes and fair rental value. These rates
generally remain constant throughout the year. Nursing service rates are adjusted
quarterly to capture fluctuations in residents’ acuity based on the Minimum Data Set
assessment tool. If a facility’s case mix increases at a higher rate than the statewide
average, its nursing services rate increases.

Pennsylvania Medicaid Reimbursement

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania pays nursing facilities a prospective daily rate for
Medical Assistance residents (Pennsylvania Medicaid). The daily rate is set annually
based on data in the three most recently filed cost reports. The rate consists of three net
operating components (resident care, other resident-related, and administrative) and one
capital component. The net operating components are based upon the facilities’ actual
net operating costs per day and limited by peer group ceilings. Resident-care operating
costs are adjusted to reflect the acuity level of the facility’s residents through a case mix
index. The case mix index is measured quarterly and the annual rate is adjusted for any
changes on a quarterly basis.

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania updates payment rates to nursing homes on July 1
of each year. The rates are scheduled to be updated each quarter for the most recent
case-mix index for a home's Pennsylvania Medicaid residents and rebased annually on
July 1 of each year. The Company has utilized actual rates in the preparation of the
financial statements.

The capital component is based upon the facilities’ fair rental value. The daily rate paid
to the nursing facility is considered payment in full with no end-of-year settlements.

Other

The Company participates in a system wide Voluntary Compliance Program instituted by
ACOMM. This program is based on the elements of an effective program identified by the
Office of Inspector General of the Department of Health and Human Services. The program
includes a dedicated compliance officer, board oversight, written policies and procedures, a
code of conduct, continuous education, periodic auditing, and an associate hotline.
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DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)
Other (Continued)

Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews, or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of
the estimated transaction price for providing patient care. These settlements are estimated
based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payor, correspondence from the
payor and the Company’s historical settlement activity, including an assessment to ensure
that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is
subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments
become known (that is, new information becomes available), or as years are settled or are
no longer subject to such audits, reviews, and investigations. Adjustments arising from a
change in an implicit price concession impacting transaction price, were not significant in
2024 and 2023.

Generally, residents who are covered by third-party payors are responsible for related
deductibles and coinsurance, which vary in amount. The Company estimates the transaction
price for residents with deductibles and coinsurance based on historical experience and
current market conditions. The initial estimate of the transaction price is determined by
reducing the standard charge by any contractual adjustments, discounts, and implicit price
concessions. Subsequent charges to the estimate of the transaction price are generally
recorded as adjustments to resident services revenue in the period of the change. Additional
revenue recognized due to changes in its estimates of implicit price concessions, discounts,
and contractual adjustments were not considered material for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023. Subsequent changes that are determined to be the result of
an adverse change in the resident’s ability to pay are recorded as credit loss expense.

Pennsylvania Department of Insurance Reserve Requirements

On a calendar year basis, BV is required by the Continuing Care Provider Registrations and
Disclosure Act of 1984 to maintain a working capital reserve equivalent to the greater of the
total of debt service payments due during the next 12 months on account of any loans or
10% of the projected annual operating expenses, exclusive of depreciation and
amortization, computed only on the proportional share of financing or operating expenses
that is applicable to residents of BV and SH under continuing-care agreements.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE4 REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

Pennsylvania Department of Insurance Reserve Requirements (Continued)

The statutory minimum liquid reserve requirement for BV as of December 31, 2024 and
2023 is $4,515,860 and $4,019,931, respectively, and is based on the projected annual debt
service requirements for BV. The statutory minimum liquid reserve requirement as of
December 31 for BV is as follows:

2024 2023

Projected Annual Interest Expense $ 3,693,393 $ 3,773,089
Principal Payments Due on Long-Term Debt 2,803,313 1,982,002

Liquid Reserve Requirement 6,496,706 5,755,091
Projected Annual Operating Expenses 35,572,572 34,531,658
Minimum Rate 10% 10%

Liquid Reserve Requirement 3,557,257 3,453,166
Maximum Liquid Reserve Requirement 6,496,706 5,755,091
Approximate Percentage of Continuing Care Clients 70% 70%

Statutory Minimum Liquid Reserve $ 4515860 $ 4019931

The statutory minimum liquid reserve requirement for SH as of December 31, 2024 and
2023 is $1,250,157 and $1,167,558 respectively. The 2024 reserve is based on 10% of the
projected annual operating expenses exclusive of depreciation and amortization, and the
2023 reserve is based on the projected annual debt service requirements for SH. The
statutory minimum liquid reserve requirement as of December 31 for SH is as follows:

2024 2023
Projected Annual Interest Expense $ 1,071,752 $ 1,384,422
Principal Payments Due on Long-Term Debt 814,787 636,624
Liquid Reserve Requirement 1,886,539 2,021,046
Projected Annual Operating Expenses 20,725,422 20,161,198
Minimum Rate 10% 10%
Liquid Reserve Requirement 2,072,542 2,016,120
Maximum Liquid Reserve Requirement 2,072,542 2,021,046
Approximate Percentage of Continuing Care Clients 60% 58%
Statutory Minimum Liquid Reserve _$ 1250157 $§ 1.167,558

Pennsylvania statute also requires that all 10% deposits made by future residents of units
under construction be held in escrow. These funds are held in cash and cash equivalents.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE4 REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT (CONTINUED)

State of Maryland Statutory Reserves

The state of Maryland requires Asbury Atlantic to set aside reserves equal to 25% of its net
operating expenses (as defined) for the most recent fiscal year. As of December 31, 2024
and 2023, AMV and AS are in compliance with the reserve requirement. The total amount
reserved for AMV is as follows as of December 31:

2024 2023
Maryland Department of Aging Reserves:
Operating Expenses $ 96,947,950 $ 94,263,625
Less: Depreciation and Amortization Expense (17,611,664) (17,465,064)
Interest Expense (5,169,317) (4,715,436)
Net Operating Expenses $ 74.166.969 $ 72083.125
Total Operating Reserve (25% of Net Operating
Expenses) $ 18,541,742 $ 18,020,781
Required Reserves for the Year Ended December 31
(100% of Total Operating Reserve) $ 18541742 $ 18,020,781
Cash and Marketable Securities Available for
Operating Reserve $ 18541742 3 18.020.781

The total amount reserved for AS is as follows as of December 31:

2024 2023
Maryland Department of Aging Reserves:
Operating Expenses $ 22,291,998 $ 20,863,750
Less: Depreciation and Amortization Expense (3,484,698) (3,314,933)
Interest Expense (863,816) (771,665)
Net Operating Expenses $ 17943484 $ 16,777,152
Total Operating Reserve (25% of Net Operating
Expenses) $ 4485871 $ 4194288
Required Reserves for the Year Ended December 31
(100% of Total Operating Reserve) $ 4485871 $ 4194288
Cash and Marketable Securities Available for
Operating Reserve $ 4485871 $ 4.194.288
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NOTE 5

NOTE 6

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Asbury Atlantic grants credit without collateral to its residents, some of whom are insured
under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party

payors is as follows as of December 31:

Private Pay

Medicaid

Medicare

Other (Primarily Managed Care and Insurance)
Total

INVESTMENTS

2024 2023
42 % 38 %
23 27
21 23
14 12
100 % 100 %

Asbury Atlantic’s proportional share of the ACOMM investment portfolios, including assets
whose use is limited and investments restricted by the board consisted of the following as of

December 31:

Investments:
Cash and Short-Term Investments
Fixed-Income Securities and Mutual Funds
Equity Securities and Equity Mutual Funds
Alternative Investments
Total Investments

Investments Restricted by Donors:
Cash and Short-Term Investments
Fixed-Income Securities and Mutual Funds
Equity Securities and Equity Mutual Funds
Real Estate Mutual Funds
Total Investments Restricted by Donors

Investments Held under Bond Indenture:
Cash and Short-Term Investments

Statutory Reserves:
Cash and Short-Term Investments

Investments Restricted by Board:
Cash and Short-Term Investments
Fixed-Income Securities and Mutual Funds
Equity Securities and Equity Mutual Funds
Alternative Investments
Total Investments Restricted by Board
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2024 2023

$ 565304 7,269,623
12,854,139 11,130,311
29,799,415 16,095,169
266,049 8,064,239
§43.484.907 42,559,342
$ 115798 58,600
5,564,863 4,958,012
10,931,575 9,787,082
52,146 82,841

§ 16.664.382 14,886,535
$ 26.403.572 31,623,009
$ 28.793.630 27.402.558
$ 69,159 618,252
1,572,578 1,340,540
3,664,159 2,556,034
14,057 392,966

§ 5319953 4,907.792




NOTE 6

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments held under bond indenture are maintained for the following purposes as of
December 31:

2024 2023
Debt Service Fund $ 10,300,566 $ 10,149,880
Debt Service Reserve Fund 16,103,006 16,103,006
Project Fund - 5,370,213
Total 26,403,572 31,623,099
Less: Current Portion (9,553,877) (8,548,702)
Long-Term Portion of Bond Indenture $ 16.849.695 $ 22074397

The total return on investments, along with investments held under bond indenture, statutory
reserves, and investments restricted by, including the change in the market value of
derivative instruments, generated net board investment income and earnings for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 as follows:

2024 2023
Included Within Asbury Atlantic’s Performance Indicator:
Interest and Dividend Income, Net $ 5,826,139 $ 4,534,102
Net Realized Gain (Loss) on Investments 9,633,955 (1,934,387)
Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Equity Security
Investments (3,070,610) 8,736,543
Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Change in
Market Value of Derivative Instruments 439,439 (268,079)
Total 12,828,923 11,068,179
Included in Other Changes in Net Deficit:
Net Unrealized Gain on Fixed Income
Securities and Other Investments 1,078,589 418,030
Total $§ 13907512 $ 11486209

Interest and dividend income is presented net of capitalized interest income related to
construction projects.

The Company engages professionals to advise on managing its investment portfolio within
guidelines of ACOMM's board-approved investment policy. As the need arises,
management reviews its investment portfolio and evaluates whether declines in the fair
value of securities should be considered other than temporary. Factored into this evaluation
are the general market conditions, the issuer’s financial condition and near-term prospects,
conditions in the issuer’s industry, the recommendation of advisors, and the length of time
and extent to which the market value has been less than cost. During the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, Asbury Atlantic did not identify any other than temporary
declines in the fair value of investments.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE7 BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN NET ASSETS OF FOUNDATION

AFOUND was established to solicit, receive, hold, invest, and reinvest donations and
bequests, which are made primarily for the benefit of AMV, AS, SH, BV, and Albright.
Asbury Atlantic's beneficial interest in the net assets of AFOUND was $35,166,561 and
$35,036,729 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The balance sheets of
AFOUND consisted of the following at December 31:

2024 2023
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 15,161 $ 99,380
Pledges Receivable, Net 974,654 602,841
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 57,092 45,335
Total Current Assets 1,046,907 747,556
Property and Equipment, Net 80,678 101,746
Investments Restricted by Donor 44,237,078 43,338,780
Pledge Receivable, Net 11,593,802 8,999,782
Long-Term Investments 1,200,000 1,330,000
Funds Held in Trust 2,719,711 3,419,102
Total Assets $ 60,878,176 $ 57,936,966
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 167,100 $ 47,796
Due to ACOMM, Net 18,227,891 16,914,226
Obligations under Charitable Gift Annuities 4,065,062 3,635,787
Total Liabilities 22,460,053 20,597,809
NET ASSETS
With Donor Restrictions 38,418,123 37,339,157
Total Net Assets 38,418,123 37,339,157
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 60,878,176 $ 57.936,966

AFOUND's investments, stated at fair value, consist primarily of cash, bonds or bond mutual
funds and equity securities or equity mutual funds. Assets held under charitable gift
annuities consist of funds contributed to trusts managed by AFOUND, with the stipulation
that specified distributions, primarily based on the income generated by the invested funds,
be distributed to a life beneficiary specified by the donor. The obligations under charitable
gift annuities are based on the net present value of future payments to the beneficiary based
on the discount rate that estimates the remaining life of the benefactor. Upon the death of
the life beneficiary, the existing funds will be available for use by AMV, AS, SH, BV, and
Albright.

(30)



NOTE 8

NOTE 9

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

OBLIGATION UNDER CHARITABLE GIFT ANNUITIES

BV is the beneficiary of various charitable gift annuities created by donors, the assets for
which are managed by AFOUND. BV has legally enforceable rights on claims to such assets
after the donor’s or current beneficiary's death. The present value of these obligations,
based on the donor's or current beneficiary’s life expectancy, is recorded as a permanently
restricted net asset.

Obligations related to charitable gift annuities issued by AFOUND and BV are recorded at
the present value of the future interest payments based on the donor’s life expectancy.
Amounts donated in excess of the liability are recorded as donations with restrictions in the
statements of operations and changes in net deficit. The present value of the liability is
calculated using the five-year United States Treasury Bond rate. This rate was 4.37% and
3.84% at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Changes in the present value of the
accompanying obligation are shown as changes in values of charitable gift annuities in the
statements of operations and changes in net deficit.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following is a summary of property and equipment at December 31:

2024 2023
Land and Improvements $ 49,396,032 $ 48,606,307
Buildings and Improvements 572,046,371 569,080,180
Furniture and Equipment 64,538,292 63,490,389
Construction in Progress 824 641 712,343
Total 686,805,336 681,889,219
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (413,832,324) (415,512,543)
Property and Equipment, Net $ 272,973,012 $ 266,376,676

Depreciation expense on property and equipment was $28,534,006 and $28,243,642 for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to/from ACOMM

ACOMM and its affiliates use consolidated cash management and payroll functions to make
the process of receiving and disbursing cash more efficient. In order to allocate the
appropriate amounts between the affiliates, ACOMM utilizes intercompany accounts to
move funds between the affiliates. During the year, these intercompany accounts will
fluctuate in order to reflect changes in cash flow, outstanding checks, or other cash
movements between affiliates. However, in addition to the daily fluctuations, the
intercompany accounts will also reflect the cumulative effect of the following types of
transactions:

Accrued Salaries and Paid Time Off (PTO) — By utilizing the payroll function, all
salaries and withholdings are processed through ACOMM. ACOMM recognizes
employee compensation, including salaries and PTO for eligible associates in a cash
value plan when the related services are performed. Accrued salaries and PTO are
calculated, tracked and recognized as liabilities of ACOMM to the extent that the
associates have earned the wages and PTO for each payroll period. These accruals
do not affect the cash of the affiliates until paid out to the employees and is not
cleared out of the intercompany accounts until paid. The intercompany account then
will retain an amount equal to the accumulated value of accrued salaries and unused
PTO for each affiliate.

Deferred Service Fees — From time to time, service fees may be deferred by
ACOMM to its affiliates in order to meet bond covenant requirements. These fees
can be recouped by ACOMM in subsequent periods when financial performance
warrants reducing or eliminating the deferral. The cumulative effect of these deferrals
will be included in the affiliate intercompany account. For 2024 and 2023, no service
fees were deferred in order to maintain bond covenant compliance.

Longer term advances from one affiliate to another are subject to repayment terms agreed
to by governing boards of both affiliates. These advances are accounted for in the
intercompany accounts.

Cash Management — Entities supported by ACOMM share a common cash
management function. Operating cash of the group is swept as needed to
accommodate investment of excess cash flow. Operating cash payments, including
borrowings and payments of intercompany loans and balances, are made through
the same sweep account. At any time, depending upon the timing of receipts,
disbursements and other investment activity, members of the group may temporarily
overdraw their share of the common operating cash. Cumulative positive cash flow
levels will periodically be transferred to more permanent investment vehicles of the
respective affiliate’s books. The balance of cash and cash equivalents includes
Asbury Atlantic’s share of the common operating cash and amounts held in their
individual checking and savings accounts, money market accounts, and short-term
certificates of deposit with original maturities of 90 days or less. Cash balances are
principally uninsured and subject to normal credit risk.
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NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Due to/from ACOMM (Continued)

ACOMM is the conduit for all intercompany transactions; accordingly, due to and due from
accounts from the affiliate point of view will always be either due to or due from ACOMM. All
intercompany accounts bear interest at short-term interest rates and are uncollateralized.

AMV and AS have combined as an obligated group for purposes of debt issuance and
related obligations. Accordingly, AMV and AS, as an obligated group, are jointly and
severally obliged to meet all debt service requirements for the Asbury Maryland
Obligated Group. BV and SH have also been combined as on obligated group for
purposes of debt issuance and related obligations. Accordingly, BV and SH, as an
obligated group, are jointly and severally obliged to meet all debt service requirements
for the Asbury Pennsylvania Obligated Group.

Service Fees

Asbury Atlantic received services from ACOMM under a service agreement at a cost of
$20,059,880 and $19,471,202 in 2024 and 2023, respectively. Included in the services is an
information technology fee. Service fees are allocated to all affiliates based upon a pro rata
share of revenues. The payment of service fees to ACOMM is subordinate to all obligations
of Asbury Atlantic under all of Asbury Atlantic’s secured loan agreements.

Asbury Atlantic has a services agreement with Albright to receive pharmacy services for the
benefit of the residents at the BV and SH campuses. Albright submits monthly invoices to
Asbury Atlantic for all products and services provided under this agreement on behalf of BV
and SH residents. The term of this agreement will continue on an annual basis until
termination by either party. The total cost of pharmacy services provided to BV and SH for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $295,887 and $305,137, respectively.

Asbury Atlantic has a services agreement with Albright to receive pharmacy services for the
benefit of the residents at the AMV and AS campuses. Albright submits monthly invoices to
Asbury Atlantic for all products and services provided under this agreement on behalf of
AMV and AS residents. The term of this agreement will continue on an annual basis until
termination by either party. The total cost of pharmacy services provided to AMV and AS for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $1,158,055 and $1,072,168,
respectively.
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NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

Maturity
Interest Rate Dates 2024 2023
Series 2022A PA Bonds Variable Rate Revenue Bonds 2025 - 2037 $ 17,539,084 § 9,970,397
Series 2022A MD Bonds Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 2037 - 2042 40,000,000 40,000,000
Series 2021A PA Bonds Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 2034 - 2041 27,235,000 27,235,000
Series 2021B PA Bonds Variable Rate Revenue Bonds 2022 - 2034 17,225,000 18,275,000
Series 2019B MD Bonds Variable Rate Revenue Bonds 2019 - 2027 3,639,000 3,816,000
Series 2019 PA Bonds Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 2021 - 2045 51,145,000 53,085,000
Series 2018A MD Bonds Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 2023 - 2036 73,390,000 78,070,000
Series 2018B MD Bonds Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 2022 - 2027 7,075,000 9,670,000
Subtotal 237,248,084 240,121,397
Unamortized Bond Premium/Discount on Bonds, Net 7,758,643 8,539,194
Unamortized Bond Financing Costs (3,603,687) (3,835,611)
Current Portion Bonds Payable (11,411,100) (10.442,000)
Total Bonds Payable 229,991,940 234,382,980
Note Payable 144,519 164,795
Current Portion Note Payable (20,257) (20,276)
Total Note Payable 124,262 144,519
Total Long-Term Debt $ 230116202 _$ 234527499

Series 2022A Pennsylvania (PA) Bonds

In July 2022, the PA Obligated Group entered into a loan agreement with Cumberiand
County Municipal Authority (the Authority) pursuant to which the Authority issued the
(Asbury Pennsylvania Obligated Group), Series 2022A Revenue Bonds, (the Series 2022A
PA Bonds) in the aggregate principal amount of $18,000,000. The Series 2022A PA Bonds
bear interest at an annual rate equal to adjusted SOFR (secured overnight financing rate)
plus a spread of 1.343%. The PA Obligated Group has hedged its interest rate exposure
associated with the 2022A PA Bonds as described in Note 12 below. As of December 31,
2024, the full $18,000,000 has been drawn down on the Series 2022A Bonds.

The proceeds of the Series 2022A PA Bonds were used to finance improvements at the
Bethany Village and Springhill campuses.

Series 2022 Maryland (MD) Bonds

In May 2022, the MD Obligated Group entered into a loan agreement with the City of
Gaithersburg (the City) pursuant to which the city sold the Series 2022 Bonds. From the
proceeds, the Obligated Group borrowed $40,000,000 of Economic Development Project
Revenue Bonds Series 2022 (the Series 2022 MD Bonds), maturing on January 1, 2042.
The Series 2022 Bonds are comprised of serial bonds at fixed rates between 4.50% and
5.125% with yields between 4.90% and 5.20%.

The proceeds of the Series 2022 MD Bonds were utilized to pay the costs of improving and
renovating the facilities at the Asbury Methodist Village and Asbury Solomons facilities and
to pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2022 MD
Bonds.
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NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Series 2021 Pennsylvania (PA) Bonds

In June 2021, the Asbury Pennsylvania Obligated Group (PA Obligated Group) and the
Cumberland County Municipal Authority (the Authority) entered into certain agreements
pursuant to which, among other things, the Authority agreed to issue the Series 2021A
Bonds (2021A PA Bonds) and the Series 2021B Bonds (2021B PA Bonds) and, when
issued, the Authority agreed to loan the proceeds thereof to the PA Obligated Group.

The Authority issued the 2021A PA Bonds and 2021B PA Bonds in October 2021.

The PA Obligated Group used a portion of the proceeds of the 2021A PA Bonds in the
original par amount of $27,235,000, together with (i) proceeds of a term loan from the bank
in the original par amount of $20,380,000 (2021 PA Term Loan), and (i) other available
funds, to refund all of the Authority’s outstanding Series 2012 PA Bonds, the proceeds of
which had been loaned by the Authority to the PA Obligated Group.

The PA Obligated Group also used proceeds from the 2021A Bonds to fund a debt service
reserve fund for the 2021A PA Bonds and to pay certain expenses incurred in connection
with the issuance of the 2021 PA Bonds. The 2021A PA Bonds bear interest at a fixed rate
of 4.50% with yields between 3.85% and 4.00%. The bond agreements for the 2021A PA
Bonds require other funds of the PA Obligated Group to be established and maintained by
the bond trustee from time to time.

The PA Obligated Group used the proceeds from the 2021B PA Bonds in the original par
amount of $20,380,000 to repay in full the 2021 PA Term Loan.

The 2021B PA Bonds were directly purchased by an affiliate of the Bank. The 2021B PA
Bonds bear interest at an annual rate equal to adjusted SOFR (secured overnight financing
rate) plus a spread of 1.41%. The PA Obligated Group has hedged its interest rate exposure
associated with the 2021B PA Bonds as described in Note 12 below.

Series 2019 Maryland (MD) Bonds

In November 2019, the Asbury Maryland Obligated Group (MD Obligated Group) entered
into a loan agreement with the City of Gaithersburg (the City) pursuant to which the City sold
the Series 2019A and Series 2019B Bonds. From the proceeds, the MD Obligated Group
borrowed $16,009,000 of Economic Development Project and Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2019 (the Series 2019 MD Bonds), which was compromised of $11,009,000 of Series
2019A Bonds and $5,000,000 of Series 2019B Bonds maturing on November 1, 2023 and
November 1, 2027, respectively. The Series 2019 MD Bonds bear interest at an annual rate
based on one-month SOFR plus a spread of 1.00%.

The proceeds of the Series 2019 MD Bonds were utilized to refund all of the Series 2009B
MD Bonds, to pay the costs of improving and renovating the facilities at the Asbury
Methodist Village location, and to pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the
issuance of the Series 2019 MD Bonds.

(35)



ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Series 2019 Pennsylvania (PA) Bonds

In December 2019, the PA Obligated Group entered into a loan agreement with Cumberland
County Municipal Authority (the Authority) pursuant to which the Authority sold the Series
2019 bonds. From the proceeds, the PA Obligated Group borrowed $59,480,000 of
Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2019, (the Series 2019 PA Bonds). The Series 2019 PA
Bonds are comprised of serial bonds at fixed rates between 2.5% and 5.0% with yields
between 2.70% and 3.96%.

The proceeds of the Series 2019 PA Bonds were used to refund all of the Series 2010 PA
Bonds, to fund the debt service reserve fund, and to pay certain expenses incurred in
connection with the issuance of the Series 2019 PA Bonds.

As required by the bond agreements, the PA Obligated Group established various reserve
funds from the proceeds of the bonds. The respective bond agreements require certain
other funds to be established and maintained by the bond trustee.

Series 2018 Maryland (MD) Bonds

In October 2018, the MD Obligated Group entered into a loan agreement with the City of
Gaithersburg (the City) pursuant to which the City sold the Series 2018A and Series 2018B
Bonds. From the proceeds, the MD Obligated Group borrowed $96,120,000 of Economic
Development Project and Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2018 (the Series 2018 MD
Bonds), which was compromised of $82,565,000 of Series 2018A Bonds and $13,555,000
of Series 2018B Bonds. The Series 2018A Bonds bear interest at fixed rates between 4%
and 5% and maturities range from January 1, 2023 to January 1, 2036. The Series 2018B
Bonds bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.0% and mature on January 1, 2027.

The proceeds of the Series 2018 MD Bonds were utilized to refund all of the Series 2006A
MD Bonds and the Series 2014A MD Bonds, to pay $7,500,000 of the costs of improving
and renovating the facilities at the Asbury Methodist Village location, to fund the debt service
reserve fund, and to pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the
Series 2018 MD Bonds.

Note Payable

In October 2017, the Asbury Maryland Obligated Group entered into a management
agreement with Sodexo Operations, LLC (Sodexo). Within this agreement, there is a
contract commitment whereas Sodexo shall purchase equipment for the services stated in
the management agreement and/or provide renovations in support of the services in an
amount not to exceed $7,000,000. Sodexo shall amortize the contract commitment on a
straight-line basis over ten years, commencing with the date the equipment is placed in
service or when renovation commences, as applicable. The balance of the contract
commitment as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 is $144,519 and $164,795, respectively.
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NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs represent expenses (e.g., underwriting, legal, consulting, and other
costs) incurred in connection with issuance of debt and are deferred and amortized over the
life of the related indebtedness on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective-
interest method. The amortization of deferred financing costs is included in interest expense
and totaled $234,025 and $291,995 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Bond Premium and Discount

Bond premiums and discounts are comprised of the difference between the price at which a
bond was sold and its fair value. Bond premiums and discounts are amortized on a straight-
line basis into interest expense over the life of the bonds. The amortization expense on bond
premiums and discounts included a reduction in interest expense of $780,550 for both the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Liens and Covenants

Collateral for the debt includes the trustee-held funds, a first mortgage lien on the Asbury
Maryland Obligated Group and the Pennsylvania Obligated Group’s real estate, as well as a
security interest in the Asbury Maryland Obligated Group and the Pennsylvania Obligated
Group's assets, accounts receivable, general intangibles, chattel paper, and certain other
items.

The Asbury Maryland Obligated Group and the Pennsylvania Obligated Group are subject to
various covenants under the bond agreements. These covenants include various reporting
financial, and operational requirements. ACOMM has agreed to contribute cash to the
Maryland Obligated Group and Pennsylvania Obligated Group under certain circumstances
and, if necessary, to meet their debt-service coverage ratio and maintain their minimum
days of cash-on-hand ratio. However, ACOMM is not contractually required to contribute
cash to the Pennsylvania Obligated Group in an aggregate amount exceeding $3,000,000.
As of December 31, 2024, management is not aware of any noncompliance with these
covenants.

Debt Maturities
A schedule of minimum maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter is

as follows:
Year Ending December 31, Amount
2025 $ 11,431,357
2026 12,525,697
2027 14,599,919
2028 10,764,954
2029 10,804,222
Thereafter 177,266,454
Total $ 237,392,603
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 12 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Asbury Atlantic, on behalf of the PA Obligated Group, entered into a swap agreement in
connection with the issuance of the 2021B PA Bonds. Under this agreement, Asbury Atlantic
pays a fixed rate of interest of 1.08% and receives floating rate payments equal to adjusted
SOFR (secured overnight financing rate) plus a spread of 1.41% based on a notional
amount equal to the principal amount of the 2021B PA Bonds. Payments under the swap
agreement began on October 4, 2021 and will terminate on June 1, 2033.

Asbury Atlantic, on behalf of the MD Obligated Group, entered into swap agreements in
connection with the issuance of the Series 2019 bonds. Under these agreements, Asbury
Atlantic pays a fixed rate of interest of 2.226% (Series 2019A) and 2.309% (Series 2019B)
and receives payments based on a floating rate based upon one-month SOFR. Payments
on the Series 2019A agreement began on November 8, 2019 and terminated on
November 1, 2023. Payments on the Series 2019B agreement began on November 8, 2019
and will terminate on November 1, 2027.

Asbury Atlantic, on behalf of the PA Obligated Group, entered into a swap agreement in
connection with the issuance of the 2022A PA Bonds. Under this agreement, Asbury Atlantic
pays a fixed rate of interest of 3.456% and receives floating rate payments equal to adjusted
SOFR plus a spread of 1.343% based on a notional amount equal to the principal amount of
the 2022A PA Bonds. Payments under the swap agreement began on July 1, 2024 and will
terminate on July 1, 2036.

The following is a schedule outlining the terms and fair market values of the derivative
instruments on December 31, 2024

Series Series Series
2019A MD 20198 MD 2021B PA Series 2022 Total
Notional Amount -
December 31, 2024 $ - $ 3639000 $ 17,225000 $ 15,836,492

Trade Date 11/8/2019 11/8/2019 6/4/2021 7/26/2022

Effective Date 11/8/2019 11/8/2019 10/4/2021 711/2024

Termination Date 11/1/2023 11/1/2027 6/1/2033 7/1/2036

Fixed Rate 2.226% 2.309% 1.080% 3.456%
Fair Value - December 31, 2022 $ 1,314 § 246438 $ 1,906,672 $ 373,202 $ 2,527,626

Unrealized Gain (Loss) (1,314) (59,102) (298,337) 90,674 (268,079)
Fair Value - December 31, 2023 - 187,336 1,608,335 463,876 2,259,547

Unrealized Gain (Loss) - (32,582) 38,409 433,612 439,439
Fair Value - December 31, 2024 3 - 8 154,754 $ 1646744 § 897488 § 2698986

Asbury Atlantic has included the fair market value of derivative instruments as an asset of
$2,698,986 and $2,259,547 in the accompanying balance sheets as of December 31, 2024
and 2023, respectively. Net unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments were $439,439
and ($268,079) in 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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NOTE 13

NOTE 14

NOTE 15

ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions were $42,515,939 and $42,410,181 as of December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively. Included in net assets with donor restrictions are investments
to be held in perpetuity totaling $38,077,407 and $36,809,831 as of December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. Investment income earned from the net assets with donor restrictions is
available for operations of the supported organizations including funding of benevolent care.

A summary of the permanently restricted net assets is as follows:

2024 2023
Endowment Fund - Beginning of Year $ 36,809,831 $ 35,325,230
Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of
Asbury Foundation, Inc. 1,291,650 1,518,025
Changes in Value of Obligations under Charitable
Gift Annuities (24,074) (33,424)
Endowment Fund - End of Year $ 38.077.407 $ 36.809.831

RETIREMENT PLAN

ACOMM and its affiliates sponsor a defined-contribution plan (the Plan) under Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 401(k). All full-time employees of ACOMM and affiliates are
eligible to participate in the Plan. The Plan provides that eligible employees may elect a
salary deferral up to the maximum amount allowed as a deduction by the IRC. For 2024, the
employer match is 100% of employee contributions up to 3% and 50% on the next 2% of
contributions for each eligible employee. For January 1 to May 13, 2023, the employer
match was 100% of employee contributions up to 4% and 50% on the next 2% of
contributions for each eligible employee. For May 14 to December 31, 2023, the employer
match was 100% of employee contributions up to 3% and 50% on the next 1% of
contributions for each eligible employee. The employer’s contribution expense for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $1,786,944 and $1,678,589, respectively.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Caring Communities, a Reciprocal Risk Retention Group

ACOMM and its affiliates participate in an insurance risk retention group, Carin
Communities, a reciprocal Risk Retention Group (CCrRRG) licensed by the District of
Columbia for purposes of obtaining the following insurance coverage: (1) primary general
and professional liability; (2) excess general and professional liability; and (3) excess auto
liability. The primary general and professional liability coverage has a limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence and a $3,000,000 annual aggregate. The excess general and professional
liability coverage has a limit of $10,000,000 per claim and a $30,000,000 annual aggregate.
This policy has been renewed through December 31, 2025.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Caring Communities. a Reciprocal Risk Retention Group (Continued)

CCrRRG provides insurance coverage to its members, which are nonprofit, predominantly
faith based, senior housing, and healthcare providers. These members include continuing
care retirement communities, affordable housing providers, and other organizations that
offer a mix of product and services, including independent living, assisted living and skilled
nursing. In February 2025, CCrRRG was affirmed as a rating of “A (Excellent)” for its
financial strength with a stable outlook by A.M. Best Co., one of the leading rating agencies.

ACOMM executed a subscription agreement and made capital contributions in exchange for
an interest in a CCrRRG Charter Capital Account. Through December 31, 2024, ACOMM's
capital contributions were $560,508 which represents 1.99% of CCrRRG'’s total Charter
Capital. The percentage of the total Charter Capital may be affected by the future addition of
members to CCrRRG.

Health Insurance

ACOMM and its affiliates have a self-funding arrangement for health insurance coverage.
ACOMM and affiliates have stop-loss coverage for any claim exceeding $200,000 per
participant with unlimited reimbursement after a $75,000 aggregate deductible (one time
across all claimants).

Legal Actions and Claims

The Company is party to various legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of its
business. The Company’s management believes that their ultimate disposition will not have
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Lease Commitments

Asbury Atlantic leases equipment for various terms under long-term, noncancelable lease
agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2029. In the normal course of
business, it is expected that these leases will be renewed or replaced by similar leases.

The following table provides quantitative information concerning the Company’s leases.

2024 2023
Lease Costs:
Finance Lease Cost:
Amortization of Right-of-Use Assets $ 164,517 $ 157,642
Interest on Lease Liabilities 3,354 6,231
Operating Lease Cost 653,981 1,381,607
Total Lease Cost 3 821.852 $ 1.545.480
Other Information:
Cash Paid for Amounts Included in the Measurement
of Lease Liabilities:
Operating Cash Flows from Finance Leases $ 3,354 $ 6,231
Operating Cash Flows from Operating Leases 653,981 1,381,607
Financing Cash Fiows from Finance Leases 166,198 155,403
Right-of-Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for New
Finance Lease Liabilities 170,154 170,895
Right-of-Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for New
Operating Lease Liabilities 313,356 4,534
Weighted-Average Remaining Lease Term - Finance Leases 1.39 Years 1.43 Years
Weighted-Average Remaining Lease Term - Operating Leases 1.63 Years 2.44 Years
Weighted-Average Discount Rate - Finance Leases 2.00% 2.00%
Weighted-Average Discount Rate - Operating Leases 2.00% 2.00%

A maturity analysis of annual undiscounted cash flows for lease liabilities as of
December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Year Ending December 31, Operating Leases  Finance Leases
2025 $ 420,967 $ 77,634

2026 137,143 30,059

2027 37,409 -

2028 2,376 -

2029 1,967 -

Total 599,862 107,693

Less: Interest Expense (9,221) (1,400)

Amounts Recognized in the Balance Sheets ] 590,641 $ 106,293
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 16 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Asbury Atlantic provides continuing and long-term care for seniors. Expenses related to

providing these services were as follows as of December 31:

2024
Program Supporting
Services Services
Continuing Management
Care Services and General Total
Salaries and Wages $ 61,866,713 $ - $ 61,866,713
Employee Benefits 13,590,832 - 13,590,832
Contract Labor 9,030,195 - 9,030,195
Food Purchases 6,620,006 - 6,620,006
Medical Supplies and Other
Resident Costs 5,148,809 - 5,148,809
General and Administrative - 2,827,225 2,827,225
Building and Maintenance 17,806,853 - 17,806,853
Professional Fees and Insurance 2,095,322 - 2,095,322
Interest 10,496,937 - 10,496,937
Taxes 4,342,667 - 4,342,667
Provision for Credit Losses 918,067 - 918,067
Depreciation and Amortization 28,797,143 - 28,797,143
Service and Other Fees - 19,713,418 19,713,418
Total Functional Expenses $ 160,713,544 $ 22540643 $ 183,254,187
2023
Program Supporting
Services Services
Continuing Management
Care Services and General Total
Salaries and Wages $ 60,198,697 $ - $ 60,198,697
Employee Benefits 13,182,185 - 13,182,185
Contract Labor 9,783,047 - 9,783,047
Food Purchases 6,168,814 - 6,168,814
Medical Supplies and Other
Resident Costs 5,085,493 - 5,085,493
General and Administrative - 2,771,048 2,771,048
Building and Maintenance 18,162,559 - 18,162,559
Professional Fees and Insurance 1,907,838 - 1,907,838
Interest 10,541,646 - 10,541,646
Taxes 4,266,786 - 4,266,786
Provision for Credit Losses 796,041 - 796,041
Depreciation and Amortization 28,499,904 - 28,499,904
Service and Other Fees - 19,003,218 19,003,218
Allocations to Asbury Foundation, Inc. - - -
Total Functional Expenses $ 158.593.010 $ 21,774,266 $ 180.367.276

Included in management and general expenses are service and other fees and other
general and administrative expenses.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 17 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The determination of the fair values incorporates various factors required under fair value
accounting. These factors include not only the credit standing of the counterparties involved
and the impact of credit enhancements (such as cash deposits, letters of credit and priority
interests), but also the impact of the Company’s nonperformance risk on its liabilities.

The fair value of investments is determined by third-party service providers utilizing various
methods dependent upon the specific type of investment. When quoted prices are available
in the active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Assets
utilizing Level 1 inputs include equity securities and mutual funds and fixed-income
securities and mutual funds.

Liabilities utilizing Level 2 inputs are derivatives. A quoted price can be obtained from a
number of dealer counterparties and other independent market sources based on
observable interest rates and yield curves for the full term of the asset or liability, thus
derivative instruments are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.

Investments measured at fair value using net asset value per share include alternative
investments. Alternative investments are those not listed on national exchanges or over-the-
counter markets, or for which quoted market prices are not readily available. The Company
Group follows guidance related to the fair value measurement standard that was issued for
estimating the fair value of investments in investment companies that have a calculated
value of their capital account or net asset value (NAV) in accordance with, or in a manner
consistent with U.S. GAAP. As a practical expedient, the Company is permitted under U.S.
GAAP to estimate the fair value of an investment at the measurement date using reported
NAV without further adjustment unless the entity expects to sell the investment at a value
other than NAV or if NAV is not calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 17 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy Asbury Atlantic’s
financial assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31:

At Fair Value as of December 31, 2024

Recurring Fair Value Measures Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash and Short-Term Investments $ 55947463 $ - % - $ 55947,463
Fixed Income Securities and Mutual Funds 19,991,680 - - 19,991,580
Equity Securities and Mutual Funds 44,395,149 - - 44,395,149
Real Estate Mutual Funds 52,146 - - 52,146
Derivative Instruments 2,698,986 2,698,986
Subtotal $ 120386338 _§ 2698986 _$ - 123,085,324
Investments measured at Fair Value
Using Net Asset Value Per Share 280,106
Total $ 123.365.430
At Fair Value as of December 31, 2023
Recurring Fair Value Measures Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Cash and Short-Term Investments $ 66,972,132 § - % - $ 66,972,132
Fixed Income Securities and Mutual Funds 17,428,863 - - 17,428,863
Equity Securities and Mutual Funds 28,438,285 - - 28,438,285
Real Estate Mutual Funds 82,841 - - 82,841
Derivative Instruments - 2,259,547 - 2,259,547
Subtotal $ 112922121 § 2259547 % - 115,181,668
Investments measured at Fair Value
Using Net Asset Value Per Share 8,457,205
Total 3 123.638.873

The Company has a policy which permits investments in alternative investments that do
not have a readily determinable fair value and, as such, uses the NAV per share as
calculated on the reporting entity’'s measurement date as the fair value of the investment.
A listing of the investments held by the Company and their attributes that may qualify for
these valuations consist of the following as of December 31, 2024:

Fair Unfunded Redemption Redemption
Investment/Strategy Value Commitments Frequency* Notice Period
Pantheon USA Fund VI 3 30,863 $ 190,415 N/A - illiquid N/A - illiguid
Pantheon Global Fund il 37,822 158,333 N/A - illiquid N/A - illiquid
Ironwood International Lid. 125,317 - Semi Annually
{on anniversary date) 95 calendar days
Partners Group 86,104 - Quarterly 20 business days
Total 3 280,106

*Subject to Board approval for each period or as documented in the fund's prospectus
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ASBURY ATLANTIC, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In December 2024, ACOMM formed Asbury Chandler Estate, LLC, a Pennsylvania limited
liability company. Asbury Atlantic is the sole member of Asbury Chandler Estate, LLC. The
reason for the formation of the LLC, and the membership interest transfer described below,
was to covert the Chandler operations from a for profit to a nonprofit.

On December 1, 2024, and effective on January 1, 2025, The Asbury Group, Inc. (TAG)
entered into a membership interest transfer agreement with Asbury Chandler Estate, LLC.
Under this agreement, TAG transferred 100% of its membership interests of 1569 Teels
Road, LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liability company and owner/operator of a senior living
facility known as Asbury Chandler Estate, to Asbury Chandler Estate, LLC. Pursuant to this
agreement, ownership of the senior living facility known as Asbury Chandler Estate was also
transferred to Asbury Chandler Estate, LLC.

On January 1, 2025, Asbury Chandler Estate, LLC entered into an operating agreement with
Asbury Atlantic, Inc., whereas Asbury Chandler Estate, LLC became the sole member of
1569 Teels Road, LLC. Pursuant to this agreement, Asbury Atlantic will govern the
operations of Asbury Chandler Estate, LLC as of January 1, 2025.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, Asbury Chandler Estate had total assets and total

liabilities of $12,657,230 and $11,016,977, respectively, and total revenues and expenses of
$3,407,128 and $3,467,389, respectively.

(45)



(9%)

9Gv'/60'99S §  (¥01L 8ES Q) [3 €28 ¥P6 0¢ & /68/8199L § 6059c6¢8 S 1€€'995262 § sjassy [ejol
986'869'Z - LY0'ZY9 L6L°206°L - IR SjuaWINISU| BAIBALSQ JO UOKEN[RA
19699168 - 16E'6Z6 006'722'8 LrL'e6t'y 691'896'02 uonepuno4 Jo sjassy 18N Ul 1salslu| [eloyauag
£€56'61€'S . - 6£9'668'C - vLE0ZY'L pseog Aq pejol)say SjusLISaAU|
0£9'€62°82 - £61'082'1L 098°GLS'y L28'58Y'Y ZrLLrS 8L saniasay Alonjels
569'68°01 - ZIe1z9’) 1Y9'Z¥e'9 €58°10¢°1L €88°c89'/ aimuepuj puog Japup pleH SjuBISaAY|
216622 - LLZLE - - 19€'¥92 slassy JBYlQ pue sysodaqg
z9e'v99'91 - - Z8e'v99'9L - - siouoQ Aq pajou)say sjuawlsau]
8L1°2€) - 0tp's - 88221 096'€L) 18N ‘sases aoueuUld - s}assy as-4o-1yby
179065 - 98L'ZL) 092°681 SP9'eh 050°'6¥C 18N ‘sasea bugesadg - siessy asn-10-1yBly
2L0'e26'242 : 206°'5£2'ee §15'6/1°08 06€°219'8¢ S¥9'0¥6'0€) J8N ‘Juswdinb3 pue Auedoid
Gl1'/1Z'80L (¥01'8€5°9) - 192'201'62 6£9'626'0¢ £88'22L'VS 19N ‘WNODY wolj enq
L/9'0L1'82 . ££9'LPl'e [ALANAN,) 922'Z¥0'c 045'906°25 sjassy juaung [eyoL
1/8'€65'6 - 998'€8S ¥££'6/2°2 SiP'LG. 20Z°sr6's aimuspuj puog lapup pleH sjuswisaau]
950'298°01 - £0G's8Y 088°68L°L 019'942°1 £90'FLY' L sasuadx3 pledaid pue ss|qeaiaoay J8ay0
(881'859°L) - (zZL2'00t) (sLz'001) (068'St) (L28°0LL'L) $9SS07 JPa4) J0] 30UBMO|Y
96%°'6£8°2 - 925'268'1 868°491') 0Z£'s¥S T5LveL'Y s|qeAlsday sjunodoy
L06'P8Y'ch - L21'90€ £ZL'6v8'L - £19'62¢'sE SpUBLIISaAU
£25°2¢€¢'8 $ - $ 622'69. $ geleve'e $ LLL'YL $ 118'602's $ sjusjeainb3 yseo pue ysen
SLASSV INTHAND
sl3ssy
Ul .o:.:m:( salug ___smc_.aw mmm___> U _mCoEo_om mmm___>
Aingsy Buiuiquon Aueyleg Aingsy 1SIpoyd
Aingsy

(L¥Od3Y .$¥0LIaNY LNIANIJIANI 338)
¥2oz ‘L ¥y3gn3o3a
NOILVOOT A9 133HS ADNVYIVE
*ONI ‘OILNVY1LY A¥NGSY



(2v)

3 Hoye( JoN pue saniiger [ejoL

Koo 1eN lejol

SUOIOMISSY JOUOQ UNAA
SUOIOLISaY JoUOQ INOYNAA
(L191430) s13ssVY 13N

senligen eyl

soljiqel Joyio

sspinuuy Y9 alqeliey Jepun suopebilqo

anuaAsy palaje( - Saa4 soueljuy

Ajgei aad4 souenug ajgepuniay jusbuguos

uoIOd Jualng $s97 ‘1gaq wiay -Buor

JuauND Jo J8N 'sesesT saueuld - sanljigel ases wua] -Buo
JualIng Jo 18N ‘seses Bunesado - sanl|igel] eseat| wie | -BuoT
12N ‘WINODQV 01 ang

Sapljiqes uaLng jejol

199Q wJa | -BuoT j0 uood jusuny

SOSEdT S0UBUI - S3IU|IqRIT 9SEST JO UOIO JUaLNy

sasea Bunesadg - ssniqer] ases Jo UolUo UsLND

anuanay pausjeq

8|qepunjay - s894 aduenug

sjuapisey snlj0adsold Wol sysodaq

ssfiinuuyY W9 9|qejieyd Jspun suonebiao

8jqeAed 15913]U] paniooy

$ sasuadx3 peniody pue s|qeied Sjunosdy
SAILMIAYN LNIHAND

110143a 13N ANV s3lLniavit

95" /60'99S (¥01'8£5°9) €28 VY6 0e $  268/81L'99L % 6059¢628 §  1LE€£99S¢he
(918'96Z'62) - (1¥6'220'62) 298'G9€'81 229'TWLL (g5¢°/2e'9L)
6£6'GLS Y B 26€'626 L1Z'vTL'el LrL'ger'y 691°896'0Z
(g52'218'29) . (662'€00'0¢€) 065'L¥C'E (615'652'2) (L25's6T'28)
2L2'76E°18S {(r01'885'9) 042'220°09 020'228'L¥1L 288'¢61°1L8 689'€68'80¢
000°008'L - - - - 0000051
r8'6L - - a6l - -
G/Z'98V' V61 - G6L°LZL'ZL ¥92°859'vP ZLLLE6'8E ¥01L°6522'86
3PL'6¥5'sElL - 889°LOE'EL 6¥8'300'01L 16'95v'€T ¥18'€82°88
Z02'911'08T - 991 ‘60v'sZ 2/8'642'98 ¥12'8209) 0st'8ve zol
56662 - - - z6l's £08'9Z
L18'9/1 - £69'vY 68569 128'c ZL2'es
- (¥01'8£5°9) P01L'8€5'9 - - -
2£0'95¥'62 - ¥2€'209'2 9192229 162'022'Z 908'00%' 2L
L8E°LErLL - 181'718 £1E'€08'Z 8190/ 642'901°1
8€€'9. - 8£6's - €187 186'29
0ss'cLy - £6v'29 SlL'9LL ¥z8'6¢ 95£'061
80¥'020°) - $87'60€ 609'sZY 008°0L LL2'89Z
9eY'¥85's - SLO'GLS 889'cEE 289°601°L 960'929'¢
S60°009'F - £19'922 €80'622'L SG2'eve ¥80°L08°Z
£0g°L9 - - £0€'1L9 - -
8¥rL'188'Y B 162'8L¥ 225'425°1 #05'20¥ SZY'6ES'E
225'0ee'L - £L'€5¢ $ £26'0€T $ 086'6¢ $ 988°608
‘ou| ‘onuepy sauug ybuudg abe(a *ou| ‘Suowojos abea
Angsy Buluiquion Aueyjeg Angsy 1SIpoyiIsiN
Angsy

(Ly0od3y .syoLany LN3IAN343aNI 338)

#20Z ‘L€ ¥39N303a

(QaNNILNOI) NOILYDOT A9 133IHS IONVIVE
"ONI ‘OILLNVILY A¥NESY



(8¥)

A CATA R AA - (z15%) 098'€09'9 102°€96°G €69'VEY'OL S138S8V 40 Tvsodsia
NO NIVO NV SLNFWNYLSNI SAILLVARMEA 40
ANTYA L3RIV NI IDONYHD NO (SSOT) NIVD a3zZIvIuNn

13N OL ¥OIMd SNOLLYHIJO WOH4 (SSOT) IWOINI

[8L'¥SZ'eR1 - 095'916'L2 226'561 0% £2Z1'218'2T 28679236 sasuadx] |gjoL

8Ly'eLL'8L - 0Lv'612'2 296°CEL'E S0e'16.'2 L72°800°L1 $894 JaljO pue 8a1nes
£rL'264'82 - ¥l9'6v2'C 69€'619'G ¥.1'689'¢ 98€'88Z' L1 uolezipowy pue uoneisaldaq
£90'816 - (99g'69) 228°101 ic1diy 2.0'6E8 $85507 }IP8ID I0) UOIS|ACId
299°Zpe'Y - L51'E1E L¥6'v0L'L 865'6€L §99'v8¢2'C saxe|
1€6'961°01 - £V5'6.0°)L 15211108 269'e84 Orv'298'y sasalu)
2ZE'660°T . £46°282 966105 9r6°z.le 208°2e0'L 3JUBINSU| pue S84 |BUOISS3)0.d
£€568'908°LL - LrP'8L6°)L PLL'00E'Y 166'v9¥'Z G6Z'€CL'6 aoueusuieiy pue Buipiing
§ee'128'z - €201t 208'229 158'G8Y €6h'vLe'L SAljEASIUIWPY PUE |eJoulD
608°8rL'g - 166619 €98'¥0°L 621'v1L9 028'048°C $1800 Japisay Jay)g pue salddng [eolpapy
900'029'9 - £€8°G9L Lee'zrL'L 81L'vZ0'L 02 289'C saseyoind pood
S61°0€0'6 - 9z0'00¥'} €26'025'2 yoc'ege’l zee'szl'e JogeT jorauod
ze8'065'eL - 820°6€L'L 9¢s‘Leb'e ose'ove’l ZL6'eZ0’L sjyeueq eafo|dw3
€12'998'L9 - G26'910'6 §16'9€2'CL 866'682'/ S18'96Z'ce ssllejeg

SASNAAX3

62v'9v2'902 - 810°206°12 28.'66.1'9F 2€0v8°8Z $/2'669'801 Moddng Jayl0 pue ‘sujes) ‘sanuensy [e10 )

990°256°2 ¥18'228 265'298'L 291p01L°L EEV' V'Y "dU] ‘uolepunog AINgSy WoJy SUOKESO]|y
(019'020°c) - 68.°'LY (158°'2586) (1zo'sol) (Lz5'686'L) Sjuawiseau] Ajnoag Alnb3 uo (sso) ules) pazijeaiun) JoN
$G6°cE9'6 - £08'802 5oL'eLL'T 860'69S 688'780'9 SIUBWSBAU| UO uleS) pazijesay JoN
6€1°'928'G - 206'€22 Sep'L9s') 66v°'1EL 869'60L'C 18N ‘awoou] puspiAlQ pue iselsju|
0€1°520'0¢ N 681°606°L 9.2'955'9 219°G51'9 8YS'vOt'SL $834 souelu3 JO UoeZ|LoWY
SPO'9EV'Z - Z51°201 120°9EY 22v'002 001269} anuaaay Bulelado Jeyi0
PoL'ePP'es)  $ - $ ¥£1°868'8L $ 009'89€ ‘e $ ys'vre'oz $ 828°1€6'64 $ SNUBASY SBVIAISG JUBpISTY

1¥0ddNS ¥IHLO ANV ‘SNIVD ‘SINNIAIY
ou| ‘ouepy s8ljug lybupdg abe||In "0U} ‘SUOWo|0S abe|IA
Angsy Buluiquon Kueyieg Aingsy 1sIpoys
Aingsy

(LMOd3y .syoLIaNY LNIANIJIANI 33S)
¥20zZ ‘1€ ¥39W3030 A3ANIT AVIA
NOILYOOT A9 SNOILORILSIN YONOA LNOHLIM LIDI143d L3N NI SIONVHO ANV SNOILYYIdO 40 INIWILVIS
"ONI ‘OILNV1LY A¥NASY



(61)

0cg't6c9c § - § Tevre [ YA TA 3 Z/87286'S § 6z6€S0LL %
(005‘809) S (00s‘0s) (000'e8L) - (000'64€)
981°¢98°L - LSH've 80L'Lbt'L ¥92'01 £9¢'/8¢
685'80°) - Slg'g 9/2'166 20t'6 L6s'0LL
$72'096'c - 111'22 Z65'€V0'L 10Z'€96'S S19'0£6'0L
795'82S - : ) - ¥95'82S
6Ev'6EY - - TArAY FAFN 1% - (285°Z¢)
Ive'ees’ze ¢ - $ (zig'6) $ 098'€09'9 $ L0Z'€96'S $ €69'VEYOL  §
*ou| ‘onuefyy sauu3 nyGuudg abeja 'oU) ‘suowo|og abea
Angsy Buruiquiory Aueyyag Angsy 1slpoysin
Angsy

(L4Od3Y .s¥OoLIaNY LNIANIJIaANI 33S)
¥20Z ‘1€ ¥39N393a gIAaN3 d¥v3A

SNOILORILSIY YONOA
LNOHLIM Li2143Q L3N NI 3SVY3N03a 13N

WOV 0} S19jsuel )
sway| [eyded jo aseyoind Joj pasn
SuonoLISaY WO pasea|dy S19SsY 19N
SJUSWYSaAU| JBY)Q pue
S8)uNo8S SUWOU| paxi4 Uo ules) pszileaiun joN
SNOILOIYLS3Y YONOQ LNOHLIM 1121433 13N

SNOILV¥3Id0O WOUd SWOONI

s}assy 4o [esodsiq uo uies)
SJUBWINIISU| BAIRALIB( JO

anjeA 1axiepy ul sbueyn uo (ssoT) uesy pazieasun 19N
$}9SSY JO [2S0dSI] UO UIES) puE SjUBWNISU|
aAljeAla( JO snjeA Jaxel Ul abuey? uo (sso)

uresy pazileaiup) 1aN 01 40lid suolesedQ wolj (ss07) aluadu|

(G3INNILNOD) NOILYD01 A SNOILOIMLSTY ¥ONOQ LNOHLIM 1131430 13N NI SIONVHOI ANV SNOILVYIdO 4O INIJWILVLS

"ONI ‘OLLNV1LY AY¥NEasY



(0%)

9v9'616'08 289°268'¢ 6. 'ves 1L Zve'c06'zL £16'€59°22 sapAgoy BuesadQ Aq papinoid YseD jeN
(9z6°L61) (1z6'vL) (Lgz‘z1) (Lee'vL) (2z€'061) ajqeled 1sa18)u| paniody
{851°19) 1£9'95 66909 (L52'9) (282°221) sasuadx3 peniody pue sjqeded sjunoaoy
(69¢e'128'L) 651'821 0Z¥'65 558'8 (€08°211'2) anusaey paueje(
164211 (zo2'1) - - S yLL sjessy JBUY10
(L8L's¥5'L) (o8s'9L1) 02Z'129 ¥69'0L1 (680'126'D) $994 @ouenug paleeq
685'50¥ 99t 0F (g62°29) £80°289 (¢91'652) sasuadx3 pledaid pue sajqealeosy Jayio
(8£2'509°1) (656°S1L1) (g2 928) (sev'v6l) (L19'896) 3|qBAIB09Y S)UNodoY
‘saljljigelT] pue sjassy ul mwm:mr_o
¥20've - ¥20'vZ - B sefinuuy YIS alqejieyD Japun suohebligo Jo snjeA u sebueyn
00S'809 005°'0S 000°€81 = 000'5.€ WINODV 0} siajsuel |
(zes'621) (zso‘oez) 668756 (006'652) (622'76) uollepuno Jo sjassy JeN Ul Jsasalu] [esyauag ul sebueys
(6er'eeh) (682'28) (zes'6et) - 795°2¢ SJUBWINIISU| dAleALIa(] JO
BN[eA JoyIe ul 0mcm_._0 uo sso” Ac_mva pazijeaiun 18N
(#95'825) - - - (F9s‘gzs) sjassy Jo esodsig uo uleg
(ss6°ce9'6) (£08'807) (s91°€42'2) (860'695) (688'280'9) SJUSW)S3AU| UO Ules) pazijesy JoN
120'266'L (y0e'8t) 1809 ¥19'c51 0£9'848'L SjuswisaAu] uo sso7 (uleD) pazifesiun 18N
051'10€'8€ 9€£'288'c ¥v8'698'S 652'2p8'8 LZ'ovL'6l $994 8oUBIUT BGEPUNISIUON WO.) SPaa0Id JON
(og1's20'08) (681°606°L) (922'565'9) (219'651°9) (svs'vor's)) $834 9ouBNUT JO UoheZINOWY
215"yl 128's - £v6°01L €S2 L1 }9s8Y NOY 4o uonezipowy
(0gs'082) (coe's) (¥69'691) (09905} (£68'v1G) JUNOJSIQ/WNIWaI puog Jo Uojeziowy
SZ0'PET 6S1'6l 6EY'28 66091 ZeELLL s)s0Q Buroueuly paugjaq jo uoyezipowly
929°7€9'8Z £62'€Y2'Z 69£'619'S 1£8'29'e ££9'960°21 sjs09 Bunayiey pausjaq 4o uohezidowy pue uoiersideg
290°816 (99¢'65) 248101 ¥8¥'ov z20'5e8 $38S07 Ipa1D .0} Uoisirald

‘sapianoy BuiesadQ Aq papiroid yses 1eN
0} (HoyaQ) sjessy 19N Ul sebueyn s|1uossy 0} siuau)snipy
8l2'668'9¢ $  g6T'EET $  eo05'viT'e $ ziL'EvL'9 $ sos8rl'LL  $ (¥oyaq) sjessy 1oN ui sabueyy
SAILIAILDV ONILYHYIdO WOML SMOTd HSYD

‘Ju| ‘onuepy ybundg abejia *0u| ‘SUOWOj0S abe|a
Aingsy Aueyieg Aingsy IsIpoyIa
Aingsy

(L¥Od3y .S¥O11aNV LNIANIJIANI 33S)
¥20Z ‘1€ YIGWID3A A3IANT ¥VIA
NOILVOO1 A8 SMOT14d HSVYD 40 INJW3ILVYIS
"ONI ‘OILNVILY A¥NESY



(19)

Gz1'626€9 § T vi9vicy § €969/€SL & 0162559 $ 8E9VIEIE §
6£1°569°G9 186'GEL'Y v9'692°pL 08g'eez'e 9£1'950°L ¥
(riv's9L'2) ££9'88 1Z6°90L°1 oeg'oze (s6¥°189'c)
(£20°'146'22) L08'GL0°E (£91'642) (£29°808°6) (820'66€'S1)
(005°809) (005°08) (00o‘egL) - (000'5.2€)
(15'80%'6) ZO5'POr'e {(g60'ceL L) (9s+'201°8) (255'226°L)
(861°991) (sz8's) - (88'91) {(s6¥'cri)
(r6v'vs) - (P61'vL) - -
(0012 1zZv'oL (£z¥'02) - (001'2)
(v61'c26'0L) (1v9zes) (522'829'2) (1e9'929) (Lv's6.'9)
£09'620°8 zL9'282'C 166'9¥.'S - -
(920'6€L°2L) (ree‘se6'L) (285°08¢°2) (L18'022'e) (vre‘zer's)
11v'Les's 005°280'L $21°€65 £6£'€9Z'2 006°L8€'E
{£80'v21'0€) (058'v28'9) (599'8£9'6) (680'v22°T) {€£t'986°01)
¥04'099'201 LZL'6LY'T ¥02'286've 889°/9%'9 $89°L08'¢.
(eve'veLcol) (6£9'800°2) (986'216°€2) {(1¥8'c89'S) (L28'125'12)
(86e'00L'vE) $  (8ee'sez's) $  (e88229'01) ¢ (9g6's/5'R) $  (vz'arz'el) ¢
"2U| ‘onuey ybupdg abe|iiA ‘Ju| ‘suowojog EGETT
Aingsy Aueyieg Aingsy Isipoyieny
Angsy

HVIA 40 AN3I - HSVD Q3LOI¥1S3Y ANV ‘SINITVAINDI HSVYD ‘HSVD
Jea) Jo Buuuibeg - yseg pajousay pue ‘sjusieainby yses ‘ysen

HSVQ Q3aLONLSTY ANV
‘SINITVAINDI HSYD ‘HSYD NI (ISYINI3A) ISVINONI

sanianoy Buloueury Aq (pasn) pspirold yses JoN

WOV 01 sisjsuel t

13N ‘WINOQYV o) @nq u; abueys

SOSEDT 82UBUI4 UO sjuswieg

sjuawabueny Buing-paualaq Jepun suonebiqo uo sjuawied

sis0D) Bupueuly passje( Joj sjuswhey

199 U0 sjuawdied

199 Jo 82uenss| Wol spasdold

slisodaq alqepunjoy pue saad aoUBJUT JqBPUNSY LWOL} SPUNJEY

slisodaq a|gepunjoy pue sas4 a9URIUT S|EPUNDY WO SPEB0IY
SAILIAILOVY ONIONVYNIJ WO¥d SMOTd HSVD

sanIARdY Bunsaau) Aq pasn ysen joN
SJUBWISaAU| JO sajes
SJUBWISBAU| JO saseYIINg
18N uawdinb3 pue Apsdo.d Jo eseyoing
SALLIAILOY DONILSIANI NOYHd SMOTd HSVY)

(L¥O0d3 .SHOLIANY LNIANIJIANI 338)
vzoz ‘L€ ¥Y39N3D3a a3aNT yv3IA
(Q3NNILNOD) NOILYD01 AT SMOTd HSVD 40 LINJW3LVYLS

"ONI ‘OILNV1LY AMNESY






EXHIBIT
E



Department of the Treasury

internal Revenue Service

P.O. Box 2508
cincinnati, OH 45201

pate: DEC 12 2006 Person fo Confact:
. Vaida Singleton
ID# 31-03018
ASBURY ATLANTIC INC Toli Free Telephone Number:
201 RUSSELL AVE .o 877-829-5500
GAITHERSBURG MD 20877-2801 Employer Identification Number:
) 52.0607956 :
Dear Sir or Madam:
Arlicles of Incorporation filed with lhe'state on

This is in response to the amendments to your organization's
ie change as indicated above.

September 27, 2006, We have updated our records fo reflect the name
Our records indicate that a determination letier was issued in September 1996, that recognized you as exempt
from Federal income tax. Our records further indicate that you are currently exempt under section 501(c)(3) of
the Intema! Revenue Code. ‘ .

Our records also indicate you are nota private foundation within the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code

because you are described in section 508(a)(2).
Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in sectien 170 of the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises;
transfers, or gifts fo yott or for your use are deductible for federal estate and gift tax purposes if they mest the

applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and 2522 of the Code.
If you have any questiohs, please calt us at the telephone number shown in the heading of this letfer.

Sincerely,
Ci

indy Westcoft
anager, Exempt Organizations

Determinations .




